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ABOUT SEM
BARRE

OUR PROFILE

Ready System Engineering Limited (“Ready System (Macau)”) was
founded in 2006. Upon group reorganisation in 2015, Ready System
(Macau) become a wholly owned subsidiary of SEM Holdings Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

We are an established electrical and mechanical (‘E&M”) engineering
works contractor in Macau with our focus on providing electrical-
related E&M engineering works.

The scope of our E&M engineering works mainly consisted of supply,
installation and maintenance of electrical system, for new and existing
buildings in the projects of commercial and residential development,
hotel development, casino development and hotel renovation in
Macau.

According to the Frost & Sullivan Report, our revenue represented
1.6% of the total revenue generated from the entire E&M engineering
industry in 2018 in Macau and ranked fifth among the E&M
engineering works contractors in Macau in terms of share of total
industry revenue in 2018.

R

2ERSIRARQR(T2ERSCRPM) DR
TERNFRY R-T—HAFEESHAR  2E
R CRP) N RREEBRBRAR ([ARE] -
BEREMBARMREAKE]) 22EMBERR -

BAETRMEZAREBNMNEEMEER ([HKE])
TR BINEHERMABOKBETRE -

BARETRNRMANEBHEETIEZREERR
EEM% EEFME  REGHE A S A
BRHMERREARTHERZRANOME RER
RE -

REHEHMFDMXHRE  HANKRSE=F
—NERMEEARE TRITELWRZEL1.6%
BT N\FIRBLRaENO R RAER
FIE T RARETHRED -



ABOUT SEM

B RE

OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRNAT
Year Event
Fi3 ELS
2006 Ready System (Macau) was incorporated in Macau on 15 May 2006.

—EERF

EZRHECRM)R-_ZEENFRATHAERMNFMAK L -

Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first casino project with a total contract sum of
approximately MOP22.2 million.
FEZGFORPNERE —ARLFER BEANLBHR22FERMATT -

2 |

2007
—ETLF

Ready System (Macau) provided electrical engineering works in a mixed use
development (hotel and service apartments) project with a total contract sum of
approximately MOP118.6 million.

PEZRSORPM) M—EFcURENER (BERREALE) BERTEKETE
BENSENR/1186BERMT

Ready System (Macau) was awarded its first residential apartment project with a total
contract sum of approximately MOP34.8 million.
PERFORPNERE-—EFELSBEE  BENSHENRMSEERMAT -

2008
—EENF

The annual revenue of our Group achieved approximately MOP70.0 million.
AEEERFEKRHNAT00BEEMT -

2015
—h%¥

Ready System (Macau) duly registered with The Land, Public Works and Transport
Bureau of Macau as a registered contractor for execution of construction works.

FEAGORF) NI T KEGREATTAETEET RN EMAZERS -

T THESRS

Direcgéo dos Servigos de Solos, Obras Publicas e Transportes

Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to install and supply electrical system
in a residential and commercial development project at Taipa, Macau with the initial
contract sum of approximately MOP138.7 million.

ZEZFCRFER—EER  RRAKHFOETEREEEEBETERHEEER
5 MRANREARIBTARERMT

Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to provide maintenance, supply and
installation of fitting out, electrical, mechanical ventilation and air conditioning and
plumbing works in a hotel renovation project at Avenida da Amizade, Macau with the
initial contract sum of approximately MOP120.6 million.

2ERG CRM) BE—EER - ARFIEHBZR —EEEBFEE RERE EF -
BHARREANREEIENRE HERZE VBANEBENR12068E
BFITT o

* kok Kk k
HOTEL

2017
e

The annual revenue of our Group first achieved over MOP200.0 million.
AEBERFE WS 20008ERMT
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ABOUT SEM
BERRE
OUR DEVELOPMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT BRREM @
(Continued)
Year Event
F1p ELS
2019 Ready System (Macau) was awarded a project to supply and install electrical system in
—E—NF  ahotel development project at Lago Nam Van, Macau with the initial contract sum of ~®:

approximately MOP168.8 million.
2EZHORM)ER—MEBEE - ARRFEEN —EAREZRBEEREEREZSRN
HERRZE  YRANBENAR1688EERMT -

ZE-FF  Exchange’) on 14 February 2020.

2020 The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock ﬁ
RAARR_Z_ZF_A+NBREBHMETSMAR AR ([BRA]) £/ - i

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES FIE RN

Strengthening our
financial position to
undertake more sizeable

E&M engineering Establishing an
projects E&M maintenance

department

TR B RS R e
BIERB R R

Ti#IEE

Strengthening our
manpower

MERRAF




ABOUT SEM
B BE

OUR BUSINESS MODEL FHERX

Quotation/tender submission and acceptance (3 months) wEIRERXREH(ZEA)

—  Receive the invitation to submit quotation/tender from our — EZEFIERIRE IRIZH S
customers

- Submit quotation/tender, negotiate with our customers on the — 12X HE RIZ - BE P B8 R IGHE
prices and terms, interview with customers and/or dealing with AER BEFEAR KEBREFNH
customers’ enquiries i

- Accept the offer from our customer if a written letter of intent — MEPEEHLEEEAKESTEEY
is issued by our customers or quotation with our customer is HERFHEMRE
signed

Project implementation (2 weeks to 3 months) HEEE(MEAZ=EA)

— Form a project team which normally comprise a project — K —(ABE B @ —#8H —ZIEH KIE -
manager, site supervisor and engineer Tih & & TN K

- Prepare and submit, among others, working drawing and — /EHRIES (HhaE) TRER&KSEMT
detailed work programme 1EsT 2l

—  Engage imported workers and subcontractor — ZEHALTIESER

—  Procure electrical parts and components and renting machines — — #5288 8 = 2430 70 FI#4S2 &7 3%

and equipment

—  Satisfy performance bond requirements — RMEEARMKESR

Installation, testing and commissioning (12 to 24 months) &SRR (12224 8)

—  Carry out installation and other ancillary works as scheduled in — (RRBEHATESEINERERETLERE
the detailed work programme fhEEBh T2

—  Submit application to our customers for progress payment — R ARREIEREENILBEERLS

and certification monthly

—  Carry out site acceptance test on the electrical system installed — ¥ PRLZENE R R4 TIR S B U= -
to ensure conformity to contractual specifications RSB AR

- Negotiate with our customers for re-measurement and — HEFFERSFEA NI BEETPHEITE
variation orders from the contract =]

Defect liability period (12 to 24 months) EREEE(EEI (12E 248 B)

— Make good any defects at our own cost within the defect — RERREEEEHRNE EEEEAIRIE
liability period

— Collect the residue of the retention money and the — REBGETEHRKERE SHENELRFR
performance bond upon the end of defect liability period B

Annual Report FE & 2019 7
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”), |
am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year 2019” or the “Year”).

The Group has marked a major milestone in the year of 2020 with
its listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 14 February 2020 (the “Listing”),
undoubtedly providing an effective platform for the Group’s further
development in the market. The additional capital raised and a
broader capital base as a result of listing reinforce our determination
to the future growth in the electrical-related E&M engineering works in
Macau and promote our Group as a well-organised enterprise to the
public.

The Group’s revenue has the increment for the Year, mainly due to
the market growth initiated by Macau Government launching various
promotional campaigns and related policies to support tourism
in recent years. Meanwhile, the implementation of the sizeable
infrastructure including Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge and
urbanisation building the city more prosperity, which provide more
opportunities to the market as a result contributing our revenue
growth.

The Group anticipates further growth of revenue in the coming years.
Found in 2006, the Group is a well-established E&M engineering
works contractor in Macau and has established the long-term
relationships with not only our customers, even our suppliers and also
sub-contractors. It is the crucial cornerstone letting us steadfast to
capture every opportunity in the future.

Going forward, we are optimistic about the prospects of Macau
electrical-related E&M engineering industry, despite of the outbreak
of the COVID-19. Given that Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge
mentioned-above, the Policy Address of Macau Government
2019 has announced the commitment of Macau Government to
large investments in infrastructure, including the environmental-
friendly one, and the development of New Urban Zone. The Macau
Government has also promoted the construction of Smart City,
ranging from hospitality facilities, transportation management to
telecommunications and 5G network. The sustained renovations in
urban renewal and upgrade of buildings will be expected, meaning
the potential market in future coming years. Hence, our Group
will utilise the capital fund to establish the electrical-related E&M
maintenance department to capture the new trend of rising renovation
needs. With the advantage of the perfect-harmony corporation with
our customers, suppliers and subcontractors, the Group is optimistic
about the revenue growth in the coming years.

EHHRIR

RAAFAREREST(E=De((EF2) 2RA
SEEBEE—_ZT-NF+_A=+—HLEFE(Z=
E-—NFEISAFE]) 2F®R -

AEER_Z_THEEHM—EEEL2RME - B
EA_?_?ﬁ ATHBREETEBHEXRZMABR
ARI(BRPDERED (T L] - HERAAR
SERMENE—TERREH—ESMFE - £
MHEENRINE S MERANEARER ST
EMBENBRPIRKRBEREREEARELR - I
EORAARRTNASBERABTENEE -

AERWSRNAFEEZ AR - JIE BRI

BT 4L 5 HE U 35 SR DR B S AR R B R SR IR
BREFEEDTHERAY - AR KAEZE

(RIEBHAKN) METRADLRRSHDE
MEZ - T ADEBRESHE - B2 ki
5 -

AEBERARKYRER AEER _TTAREF
PRI RBPIMBHRE TIRAER - MEEEK
fmER  EERFMOEERLY BBEEY
RHIBR - W DS HPINRKRIEES —EAREN
BEE2EA-

REXRK  BREEZLEHTMACOVID-19) » HEFK
I RPIE RN E TIRITEN M S T8 E R

B o R B B IORARE - — T~ NF R R
SEEMRFIBRNAREEZETARRIRE
BREARRERZERIUE - RFIBFTICHES
*”*iﬁkmﬂﬁﬁi CRERBEERE ERERE
BIERSGHEMB - BT EHNREBFTARESR
BB MERERRBENTHEN - Bt
AEBHBRENE KL EREBEEREE
FY - BB TENR R BB ROFEE - BHE
HEMEF HEBLSEREIFERNESD
AEBHNARBFRRERTTMELD



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

Going forward, we will be committed to raising the corporate
governance of the Group to a very high level, and strive for excellence
for our customers in the aspects of quality, safety, efficiency and
cost-effectiveness, which will be conducive to the Group’s growth
and better return on investment for our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to our business partners, professional parties and
shareholders for their unwavering trust and support to the Group
towards the successful Listing. | also would like to thank the
management team and all fellow staff members for their dedication,
professionalism and contributions. To end off, the Group will
remain perseverance and determination for assuring the long-term
development and greater returns for our shareholders.

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020

RERK  BABBOREFAELEENEEELRS
BEKF  BHORETREEEDT %2 F%A
B A S 2 R - (e me ER RSB ER -
ABRREREEREDR -

AANEBRREZERORHMEEHAERHE
EEALTRHEFBR —BARSAREEKI) L
MEERXFF - RARETHEEER L2 EF
COFHBN BEXERHREMBURLHE
K& AEEBBRHFITRIZEES  BERH
BHRWABRREREADER

FRE

FE

BEA ZETEF=HAH=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET PROSPECT

Founded in 2006, the Group is a renowned and well-established
E&M engineering works contractor in Macau with our focus on
providing electrical-related E&M engineering works. The scope of our
E&M engineering works mainly consisted of supply, installation and
maintenance of electrical system, for new and existing buildings in the
projects of commercial and residential development, hotel and casino
development and renovation in Macau.

For the Year 2019, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately MOP203.1 million, which was 9.6% higher as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year 2018”).
Due to the Macau Government development policy, the increase was
noted in terms of the number of infrastructures, development and
renovation projects. Benefit from that, the Group has captured the
trend so that the revenue increased accordingly.

During the Year 2019, an aggregate contract value of MOP379.7
million was awarded to the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding contract sum of approximately MOP230.0 million was in
progress.

The Macau Government has also promoted the construction of Smart
City, ranging from hospitality facilities, transportation management to
telecommunications and 5G network. The sustained renovations in
urban renewal and upgrade of buildings will be expected, meaning
the potential market in future coming years and thus, the Group is
optimistic about the E&M market of Macau in the coming years.

EHEBR TSR

AEER -TTAFRT - RRFIZERBHM
WETIRARE  LENERETARNKET
2o RMBE TR EHREEENRIIDERD
% RAEEME T LIRSS R IEE -
FRRABEFHERRANGUE - TR RRE -

RZE—NFE  AEBEHGFEWELH20318
BRMAT REE-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—81t
FE(ZE—NFE]) B M.6% BRI
FREREEK 22 AELBFEEZRESM
e LR AEEREBEEREBS - S
FEFEIE HN -

R-ZEBE-—NFE AEEERTFAELHREITT
BERMT RZZE—NF+A=+—80" ' &
KREBANLEA 2300 BE R T EERIES o

BB TESE SR HHER  RERABEER
e EREEEEE NG - BT ER
RBFHESAIRFED  DERERKBFDH
MISEN LA  NEBERKBFRPINKE
MIBFEMIE L ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 9.6%, from MOP185.2 million for
the Year 2018 to MOP203.1 million for the Year 2019. Such increase
was mainly due to the Group’s maximising on the utilisation of its
existing capacity as demonstrated by the increase in the number of
projects undertaken by the Group for the Year 2019 compared to
that of the Year 2018. In particular, the increase in Group’s revenue
was driven by the increase in the number of projects where E&M
involved for the Year 2019 when comparing to the number of E&M
maintenance projects for the Year 2018.

The growth in revenue was offsetted by the projects, the contract
sum of above MOP100 million, being closed to their completion,
resulting in a relatively lower level of revenue contributed during the
Year 2019.

Bt %5 [5) B8
25

AEENKRER T - \FEMN1852H & EM
TN 9.6% E T —NFE M 203.1 B &R o
BRAEBNNDEEERNAEER - —NEE A&
ENIRSER_Z—/N\EEEN LIRAE
EREEESALCBAMK - LER  AEBEW
HIOHZE-—NFEMPREERETZEEL
ER - N\FEMEHERB SIS MATHE -

WHRERBEASER1008 &R TEATT
IR RS AtR - hEEERKE
I RRERIE

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F

MOP million % MOP million %

BERMT % BERMT %

Hotels and Casino IR N IR 8435 158.0 77.8% 90.0 48.6%

Residential properties EEMZE 12.3 6.0% 4.3 2.4%

Commercial properties [EEXJES 30.4 15.0% 890.7 48.4%

Others HAh 2.4 1.2% 1.2 0.6%

203.1 185.2

Supply and installation HpE R = 147.2 72.5% 164.4 88.7%

Maintenance RE 12.5 6.2% 45 2.5%
Supply, installation and HE ZERRE

maintenance 43.4 21.3% 16.3 8.8%

203.1 1856.2

Annual Report FE & 2019 11
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continueq)
Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately MOP147.1
million for the Year 2019, representing an increase of 14.1% from
approximately MOP128.9 million for the Year 2018. Cost of sales
mainly comprised of costs of materials and subcontracting costs,
which accounted for approximately 20.3% and 60.0% respectively of
the Group’s total cost of sales for the Year 2019 (2018: approximately
37.2% and 34.3% respectively).

Gross Profit/Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit for our provision of E&M engineering
works remained stable of approximately MOP56.0 million for the Year
2019 and approximately MOP56.3 million for the Year 2018. The
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 30.4% for the Year
2018 to approximately 27.6% for the Year 2019.

The decrease was mainly attributable to the projects for the Year
2018 of relatively higher gross profit margin due to (i) the variation
works as a result of the alteration of the construction plan; and (i) our
successful negotiation with our customers for a relatively higher profit
margin in view of the short completion time required. Those projects
were at their latter stage and approaching practical completion, of
which the gross profit contribution is relatively larger for the Year
2018. The decrease in gross profit margin was net off by the effect
of several maintenance projects with higher margin being awarded in
the Year 2019, as a result the overall gross profit margin was slightly
decreased for the Year 2019.

Despite the drop in margin, the Directors consider that the gross
profit margin has been maintained at a healthy position as such gross
profit margin is similar with previous years’ margin which ranged from
approximately 24% to 31%.

Other income

Other income mainly included income from interest income
from banks and sundry income. For the Year 2019, the Group’s
other income amounted to approximately MOPO.2 million (2018:
approximately MOPQ.1 million). Such increase was mainly attributable
to the interest income from bank as a result of higher average bank
balance for the Year 2019.

B IS EEE e
HER A&

—NFE AEBNHEERAAL14718
BRMAT BT \FEMNH12890FERM
T IN141% - SEERAEBBEMBRARD
BRA DRMEAEE T — N FERARHEER
AN H) 4920.3% F260.0% (ZZT— N\F: DRl &K
37.2% K 34.3%)

%ﬂ/%ﬂ%
—NFERZZE-NFE  AEEMREHRY
%E&I&%ﬁ;%ﬂ%HgE o Rl & #156.0 8
BT RA563EBRMIT - EFEXH T
—)\E&E’M’BOA%MQ%_? NEEWA
27.6% °

ZRLDEEHR _ZE-N\FEEMNXBHEK
SMEBEMY - REAA(NEIFSZHSIHEE
T RERESEH T TMHRFMERT KD
EEAHRSENE - ZFHARNRAKERE
BOBERTI  HR-ZT-N\FENENFTEME
BEK - EMNETRHE_FT— ﬂif?‘i&%ﬂ

RENETHERENTZEMEHE it
—NEFE - BREMREBMTE -

BEEFETEE \Eé%?ﬁﬁ% FEFE— EZ’E%
B REAASZEMNEREBATFENENERES
NFHI24% E31%

Hitit A

Hip AT EBRERE RITHERARFEERA -
“E-NEFE AEENEMBARNES
BT (CE-N\F:HO1BEEMT) -AH
BNDERAR T NFEFORITERIEM
EEMRITHEWAFTE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased from approximately
MOP6.3 million for the Year 2018 to approximately MOP11.0 million
for the Year 2019. Such increase was mainly due to (i) the increase in
our total staff costs which was mainly due to the discretionary bonus
and salary increment for our management and administrative staff;
(i) the legal and professional fee for the preparation for annual result
after the Listing; and (iii) the increase in our depreciation expenses
which was mainly driven by the increase in our right-of-use assets for
leased properties.

Taxation

The Group’s income tax expense slightly increased by approximately
1.3% from approximately MOP6.9 million for the Year 2018 to
approximately MOP7.0 million for the Year 2019, which was due
to some non-deductible administrative expenses for tax purpose in
headquarters during the Year 2019.

Net profit and adjusted net profit

The Group reported a net profit for the Year of approximately
MOP20.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 51.1%
as compared with a net profit of approximately MOP41.5 million
generated for the Year 2018. If the non-recurring listing expenses
were excluded, the Group’s adjusted net profit for the Year 2019
would be approximately MOP37.4 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 13.4% from the adjusted net profit of approximately
MOP43.2 million for the Year 2018. The adjusted basic earnings
per share for the Year 2019 would be approximately MOP2.5 cents.
(2018: approximately MOP: 2.6 cents).

Final Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year 2019 (2018: nil).

B IS EEE e
THRX

AEENTHRAXH-_Z-N\FENL63BE
BEATRE_ZF-NAFENOIT0FERMT -
BRENSIEEN)EIZREEERITHAER
B BB EAL R & ERRABUE S TAAIE N : (i)
EHREREERENERRFEEZER © M)
ERgm(T2anrlEnENEREEER
MEB) -

Wi1R

AREEFRERAYH-_ZE—N\FENYEIBEE
SRP TR I N1 3% E - E—NEEMNHNT0
BEBRMT WIYBAR-_ZE—AEEEARLETT
AN ZITRFA S FTE -

AR R R AR

AEBBESAFEAMNO203BERFIT 8-
- \FEEENAMNON5BERPFITRE D
51.1% ° IR IFEE M L TR - NEBR =
T-NEENKRBANE /K374 BERFT -
BT \FENKEABRAND432BERMT
WAPH184% - _E-NFRELHAEBRELRR
& R 2.5 BFHI(ZT—N\F : 92.638FL) -

KEIRR

EEeTEEN _T-NAFEINRERE (=
T—)\F: E|) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group has financed its operations primarily through cash inflows
from operating activities. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately MOP33.6 million (2018:
approximately MOP27.0 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the working capital (current assets less
current liabilities) and total equity attributable to owners of the
Group were approximately MOP136.0 million (2018: approximately
MOP115.8 million) and approximately MOP151.4 million (2018:
approximately MOP131.1 million), respectively.

Gearing ratio (total debt including amounts due to related parties and
Directors/total equity) as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
36.9% (2018: approximately 32.8%). Such increase was mainly
due to the combined effect of increase in trade payables due to the
several project status being in full swing.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities. As such, the Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions
and assets and liabilities as the Group’s risk in foreign exchange is
insignificant. However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its
exposure to currency movement and take proactive measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest bearing financial assets, mainly interest-
bearing bank balances. The interest rates of these bank deposits are
determined by reference to the respective bank offer rate. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTY

The Group’s business operations are conducted in Macau providing
the electrical-related E&M engineering works and our engagements
with customers were on a project basis and non-recurring in nature
that we did not enter into any long-term agreement or master service
agreement with them. We have to undergo the competitive bidding
process for every new project. In the event that we are unable to
attract new customers or secure new projects from our existing
customers, there may be a significant decrease in our revenue. Our
operations and financial results would hence be adversely affected.

Other principal risks include fluctuations in estimated project
costs versus the actual project cost incurred due to unexpected
circumstances and imported labour quota allocated to our projects,
both of which would adversely affect the Group’s operations and
financial performance.

The Group is also exposed to certain market risks such as currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, etc..

The Group believes that risk management is the responsibility of
everyone within the Group and has implemented a risk management
system to mitigate the risks in daily operations. Risk management
is led by the Directors at the top, who take both macro and micro
economic conditions into account before making business decisions,
and also aims to develop risk awareness and control responsibility as
the Group’s culture and the foundation of the Group’s internal controls
system.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION OR DISPOSALS

There were no significant investments held, nor any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies apart
from the group reorganisation in relation to the Listing as disclosed
in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 January 2020 (the
“Prospectus”) for the Year 2019.

) 2= a5l By

AEEMHEAFEEREE (EZRFAERITHE
BN EEHZTEELNON TR - ZFIRT
TERF KT 2ERERITHOBGRNREE - A&
[ 2R 5 X AR AT A RSP R - AT AEEE
BEAERRERSEEBEPEAMEER -

FREBRRIEEERR
AEEMEHBRORMALE  RHEREERET
B MRMRABEEREZFZE  BBHELR
o AP B R P AT S AR AT R A W 2K AR TS
ik - BFIARE A AR 2EBFERE -
BPRERSIFEPRAREEFPMEHER -
BAH S E AR - RAWEERIBEE
BEELE RN E -

Hip 2R EEMGEHEKAHREBIMER R
DETHRFMER 2BAL TRBMBZERIER
RARE  MEDEHAEENLE RPBRIR
ERTREE -

AEETHEE THERR  fInEERE - 5
xRk EERR  RBESERE -

AEBERERAREESARELTEEETME
T AUBEBEREERR AR EEEED
Rk - AREEHSEEEEE  HIMELER
REREEBRBMMELBENN - e HEINF
[\ b BRAMESI B - AR AEB B SUERMALE
BAEEIE R RAVER -

EARE - EXAWBILHE

—E-NEFE -AQRBHA-_ZT-_ZTF—A
—t+t—HZBRER(BRERZ]DIRENEH
EFTMEERSEAN AEBMESFERRE -
MEEREAKBEEENB AR LB E AT -

Annual Report FE 4 2019 15



16 SEM Holdings Limited JEIEZI AR D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019 are pledged to secure the performance bonds granted to the
Group. The Group had no other material pledge of assets as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above and in the Prospectus, the Group does not
have other plans for material investments and capital assets as at 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no material capital commitments as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 in mainland China and the subsequent
quarantine measures imposed by the mainland Chinese government
as well as the travel restrictions imposed by other countries in early
2020 have had an impact on the operations of the Group, as most
of the Group’s operations are located in Macau. The Group had to
suspend its electrical and mechanical contract work for certain days
in January and February 2020 voluntarily in an effort to contain the
spread of the epidemic. The Group had resumed those contract work
in March 2020.

As the situation remains fluid as date of this report, the Directors
considered that the financial effects of the COVID-19 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements cannot be reasonably estimated
and will closely monitor the Group’s exposure to the risks and
uncertainties in connection with the coronavirus pneumonia epidemic.

There have been no other material events occurring after the Year
2019 and up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the Year 2019, as far as the Board and the management are
aware, save as the non-compliance disclosed in the section headed
“Business — Non-compliance” in the Prospectus, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has material impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 23 employees including directors as at 31 December
2019 (2018: 20), among which 13 and 10 were stationed in Macau
and Hong Kong, respectively. The total staff costs (including fees,
salaries and other allowance, and retirement benefit scheme
contributions) for the Year 2019 were approximately MOP7.1 million
(2018: approximately MOP4.9 million). The remuneration policy and
package of the Group’s employees were periodically reviewed. Apart
from retirement benefit scheme contributions, salaries increment and
discretionary bonuses may be awarded to employees according to
the assessment of individual performance. The remuneration policy in
place as at 31 December 2019 was in line with the current legislation
in the relevant jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of the
staff and the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING tHRENRERRE

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been listed on  ARQ GG (RO R -_E-_ZTF - A+ MOH
the Stock Exchange on 14 February 2020 (the “Listing Date”). Net ([ LT B HA]) R B P ET o LTS RIEF
proceeds from the Listing were approximately MOP73.2 million (after 58 &#%)73.2 8 &R (&M EME KE
deducting the underwriting commission and other listing expenses T AR EA FHF X %) « RAIRE BE - BT
in connection to the Listing). As at the date of this report, the net SFIBFHE 2 HABROT ¢

proceeds had been utilised as follows:

Unutilised
Actual usage amounts
Net proceeds up to as at the
from the date date of
the Listing of this report this report
£ BEEFRHE RARE
FRi§FR18 HE Z HE Z
BEE BERAER RBELEHE
MOP million MOP million MOP million
BERMT BERMT BERFMT
Payment of the upfront cost for our & 2R I8 B BT HARK AR 9 - 3%
future projects 22.9 - 22.9
Payment of the performance bonds 7&K 18 B & #94R (K &) 1~ 5%
for our future projects 22.9 - 22.9
Establishing E&M Maintenance B #E B R EPPY
Department 15.3 - 15.3
Strengthening manpower EINAF 7.2 - 7.2
Strengthening manpower for EIEREBFINHAF
(E&M Maintenance Department) 4.4 - 4.4
General working capital —REEES 0.5 - 0.5
73.2 - 73.2

The unutilised proceeds of approximately MOP73.2 million were  REVEFITSRBELN7I2BE R LERA —HE
placed with a licensed bank in Hong Kong. EIFRRERTT o

The Group targets to complete the implementation of the future plan ~ AEBEIR W& —FAZHEEARTE - F
within one year after the Listing. Please refer to the Prospectus for  BEFTSRUER®R Z AKTEIFS - BLEHBRER -
details of the future plans of use of proceeds.



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSAREEEEBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The biographies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set forth below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (#8#¥ 1), aged 49, is our executive Director, chief
executive officer and senior project manager. He was appointed as
our executive Director on 29 March 2016 and our chief executive
officer on 1 August 2018. He is a director of SEM Resources Limited.
He is currently responsible for overseeing our projects management,
execution of daily management and operation, and regulatory
compliance.

Mr. Woo has more than 25 years of experience in the E&M
engineering industry. He joined Ready System Engineering Limited
(“Ready System Engineering”) on 22 February 1995 as an engineer.
Mr. Woo started to work for our Group in around April 2007 and
has served as our senior project manager since 1 March 2016. He
was awarded higher diploma in management of building services
engineering from Vocational Training Council in Hong Kong in July
2003. He obtained a bachelor degree of engineering in building
services engineering from the University of Central Lancashire,
through distance learning, in December 2007. He currently holds the
certificate of registration of electrical worker issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong and is a Grade C
electrical worker.

For Mr. Woo’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report” in this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (Continuead)

Mr. Wun Chi Wai (FE &) (“Mr. CW Wun”), aged 50, joined Ready
System Engineering as a contracts manager on 1 May 1993. Mr. CW
Wun joined our Group as a shareholder of Ready Engineering Limited
(“Ready Engineering”) upon the incorporation of Ready System
(Macau), a company incorporated in Macau, on 15 May 2006. He is
one of our controlling shareholders and our executive Director. He is
also a director of each of the members of our Group except for Ready
System (Macau). He was appointed as our Director on 6 November
2015 and was re-designated as our non-executive Director on
29 March 2016. On 1 August 2018, he was re-designated as our
executive Director. He is currently responsible for providing strategic
advice to our Group’s business development.

Mr. CW Wun was awarded the higher certificate in building studies
by Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He obtained a master
degree of business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
January 1999. He is the younger brother of Mr. Wan Man Keung and
the cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis. He has more than 25
years of experience in the E&M engineering industry.

For Mr. CW Wun’s interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report”
in this annual report.

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan (81 & &) (“Mr. Yu”), aged 50, joined Ready
System Engineering on 1 April 1994 as an engineer. Mr. Yu joined
our Group as a shareholder of Ready Engineering on 28 December
2010 and started to work for our Group in around April 2013. He
was appointed as our senior project manager on 16 April 2016 and
our executive Director on 1 August 2018 and is one of our controlling
shareholders. Mr. Yu is currently responsible for overseeing our
projects management, execution of daily management and operation.

Mr. Yu completed a three-year part-time evening technician
programme at Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as
the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in
Hong Kong and was awarded a certificate in electrical engineering
in September 1992. Mr. Yu has more than 25 years of experience
in the E&M engineering industry. He currently holds the certificate
of registration of electrical worker issued by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong and is a Grade B
electrical worker.

For Mr. Yu's interest in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
annual report.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continuea)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (F K &) (“Mr. MK Wan”), aged 58,
founded our Group (through Ready Engineering) on 15 May 2006.
He is one of our controlling shareholders, our chairman and non-
executive Director, and member of our nomination committee. He
was appointed as our Director on 6 November 2015 and was re-
designated as our executive Director on 29 March 2016. On 1
August 2018, he was re-designated as non-executive Director. He is
also a director/administrator of each of the members of our Group.
He is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group’s business development.

Mr. MK Wan currently holds the certificate of registration of electrical
worker issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
in Hong Kong and is a Grade B electrical worker. He has more
than 28 years of experience in the E&M engineering industry. Prior
to founding our Group, Mr. MK Wan, together with other business
partners, through Ready Engineering, established, among others,
Ready System Engineering providing various E&M engineering
services in Hong Kong and the PRC. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in
the Prospectus. Mr. MK Wan is currently an executive director of
REM Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. MK Wan completed form three education in 1978. He was
awarded a craft certificate in electrical fittings and installations by the
Morrison Hill Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong in July
1981. He is the elder brother of Mr. CW Wun and a cousin of Mrs.
Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis.

EET»
EHMITESE

FREEE(FRAKL]D 8% R_TE7
FhATHAHEREERMIRERINAKE - K
REEBERz - EFEFIFRTES X RRES
ZEEKE BN _T—HF+—-ARNBEZE
REEFLINR _ZE-—RF=ZAZ+NBRAER/NT
EX-R-_T-N\FN\A—RB KATHIEHT
B -BARAEEHETERERRNESE 17
BAE BREEANEEEHERNVBERRBR
g REE -

e

FRGLERFERBRETIESEENEET
BABGMERE  A—ELBREEXEIEABR -
BREETRITERFB28FLR - RAIZ A
@A FRAGACEBEREMERZHEBEK
YK (EFP e 2EXATEREERPEHIE
HEBRETERE -BHFBEEL2HBRER
(BRI R R ] — /i - FRBAER A2 E
BERER (R ARAA (RMHAS 1750 @ &
BEBITROEBMIAT LM IMITES -

FRBEER -NENFZXF=ZRE - BN
—NMN—FLABFENERRIIT (SR (R
BEEREXHEBESR (BEERLUSR))RTES
RENEERTIRE HAFERELNRILRK
BFE2RRANES -

Annual Report FE 4 2019 21



22 SEM Holdings Limited SBiZ#E ¢ AR A 7

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis (i F £ ), aged 63, is our
non-executive Director and member of our audit committee and
remuneration committee. She was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 29 March 2016. She is currently responsible for providing
strategic advice to our Group’s internal control and corporate
governance. Mrs. Kan is currently a certified public accountant
(practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a certified tax adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Between June 1977 and December 1980, Mrs. Kan worked for The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation (currently known as
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited). She was
employed by John B.P. Byrne & Co. between December 1980 and
April 1985 with her last position as tax senior. She was a founding
partner of a local firm of certified public accountants from April
1997 to October 2010. She later founded KAN-WAN Certified Tax
Advisors, a tax consultancy firm, in December 2010 and BOYA CPA
& Co., a certified public accountant (practising) firm, in October 2012.

Mrs. Kan is currently a non-executive director of REM Group
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 1750), the issued shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. She completed the programme of
diploma in management studies organised jointly by the Hong Kong
Management Association and Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in June 1988. Mrs.
Kan is a cousin of Mr. MK Wan and Mr. CW Wun.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer (2IfZ), aged 68, is our independent
non-executive Director and chairman of our nomination committee
and member of our remuneration committee. He was appointed as
the independent non-executive Director on 22 January 2020. He is
currently responsible for providing independent judgement to bear on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources and
standard of conduct. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors and was the president from 1996 to 1997.

Mr. Lau has substantial experience and involvements in construction,
real estate and infrastructure projects. Mr. Lau was a member of
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 2000 to 2004. He was
a former chairman of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(HK Branch). He was a non-executive director of the Urban Renewal
Authority, a member of the council of the City University of Hong
Kong and a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shanghai. Mr. Lau is currently the
managing director of Biel Asset Management Company Limited.
Mr. Lau is also an independent non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (stock code: 1888) since August 2015
and was an independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation
Limited (stock code: 66) from August 2015 to May 2019, both of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lau was awarded a higher diploma in quantity surveying from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in 1974 and a master degree in construction
project management from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lau is one of the founders and currently the chairman of Hong
Kong Coalition of Professional Services. Mr. Lau is also a member of
the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee, and the
council of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS (i%{f ), aged 65, is our
independent non-executive Director and chairman of our remuneration
committee and member of our audit committee. He was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 22 January 2020. He
is currently responsible for providing independent judgement to bear
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources
and standard of conduct. Dr. Sham is currently a practicing barrister
in Hong Kong. He has been admitted as a barrister of High Court of
Hong Kong in 1986, a barrister of High Court of Australia in 1991,
and a barrister and solicitor of the Supreme Court of the Australian
Capital Territory (ACT) in 1991. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the government of Hong Kong in 2016. He has been elected
as a fellow of Society for Advanced Legal Studies (SALS), England in
October 2002.

Between May 1978 and March 2016, Dr. Sham worked for the
government of Hong Kong, including the Department of Justice, with
his last position as deputy director of public prosecutions. He has
been an honorary advisor of the Staff Training Institute of Correctional
Services Department since 2018.

Dr. Sham was awarded a bachelor degree of social science from The
Hong Kong University in November 1978, a bachelor degree of laws
from The University of Buckingham in February 1984, a postgraduate
diploma in law and practice from The City University London in
October 1985, a master degree of laws in Chinese law from The
University of Hong Kong in December 2004 and a doctorate degree
of laws* (3% £ {8 4-) from China University of Political Science and
Law in June 2005.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas (#§X58), aged 58, is our independent
non-executive Director and chairman of our audit committee and
member of our nomination committee. He was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 22 January 2020. He is
currently responsible for providing independent judgement to bear on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources and
standard of conduct.

Mr. May has gained experience of accounting, finance and general
management since 1987. From September 1987 to October 1990,
he worked with Deloitte Ross Tohmatsu (currently known as Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu), with his last position held as senior accountant
in the audit department. From October 2002 to October 2003,
he worked for Kinetana International Biotech Pharma Limited, a
company previously listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(former stock code: 8031) and delisted from the Stock Exchange in
September 2006, as the financial controller and company secretary.
From March 2004 to July 2005, he worked for Zhongda International
Holdings Limited, a company previously listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (former stock code: 909) and delisted from
the Stock Exchange in March 2019, as the group financial controller
and company secretary. From August 2005 to October 2006, he
worked for Matsunichi Communication Holdings Limited (later known
as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited), a company previously listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock code:
283) and delisted from the Stock Exchange in August 2017, as the
chief financial officer and company secretary and his last position
as deputy general manager. From April 2007 to October 2009, he
worked for Hopewell Holdings Limited, a company previously listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (former stock code: 54)
and delisted from the Stock Exchange in May 2019, as the group
financial controller. From May 2008 to October 2009, he also worked
for Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited (currently known as
Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 737), as an alternate director. From March 2010 to
March 2013, he worked for China Resources Property Limited as
the chief financial officer and internal audit director. Since July 2013,
he has been appointed as the director of Nichova Consultants
Limited. From April 2015 to January 2018, Mr. May worked for
China Information Technology Development Limited, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8178), as an
independent non-executive director. In addition, since August 2019,
Mr. May has been working for S&T Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3928),
as an independent non-executive director.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. May obtained a degree of bachelor of economics from Macquarie
University in Australia in April 1986 and a degree of master of
commerce in finance from the University of New South Wales in
Australia in June 1995. He has been an associate of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (currently known as The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants) since June 1990.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung (BR & i), aged 35, is our financial controller
and company secretary. He is responsible for managing the financial
operation and overseeing the company secretarial and compliance
affairs of our Group. He has more than 10 years of experience in
accounting. He is currently a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chan worked for Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from September 2008 to April 2015 with his last position
as manager. From June 2015 to March 2017, he was employed by
Kai Yuan Holdings Limited as a senior accounting manager (stock
code: 1215), the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He joined our Group in July 2017 and was appointed as
our financial controller and company secretary on 3 July 2017 and 18
December 2017, respectively.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree of business administration with
a major in accountancy and a minor in finance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2008.

Mr. Wong Man Wai Thomas (& X &), aged 52, is our assistant
project manager. He was employed by China Head Development
Limited from January 1997 to November 2000 with his last position
as a supervisor. He joined Ready System Engineering on 1 December
2000 as an engineer. Mr. Wong started to work for our Group in
around April 2008 and has served as our assistant project manager
since 1 March 2016. He has more than 21 years of experience in
the E&M engineering industry. He was appointed as our executive
Director on 29 March 2016 and resigned as our executive Director on
1 August 2018. He was also appointed as an administrator of Ready
System (Macau) on 20 June 2011. Mr. Wong completed form five
education in June 1984 in Hong Kong. He is currently responsible for
assisting our senior project manager in our projects management and
execution of daily management and operation.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERBRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)

Mr. Yip Chi Fai (E75#), aged 39, is our accounting manager. He
joined Ready System Engineering on 2 May 2008 as an accountant
and started to work for our Group on 1 January 2014. He was
appointed as our financial controller and company secretary on 15
March 2016 and 29 March 2016 respectively and he resigned as
our controller and company secretary on 18 December 2017. He is
currently responsible for assisting the management of the financial
operation, corporate governance and company secretarial matters of
our Group.

Mr. Yip was awarded one-year advanced certificate in accountancy
by Hong Kong Christian Service Kwun Tong Vocational Training
Centre in July 2000 and has become a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2013. He has more than 18 years of experience in accounting. He
worked for Lixin C.P.A. Limited between August 2000 and March
2004 as audit assistant, and Info Smart International Enterprises
Limited between March 2004 and March 2006 as assistant
accountant. Before joining Ready System Engineering, he served
Qualiman Industrial Co. Limited as assistant accounting manager
between April 2006 and March 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for
the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate
its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and all relevant code
provisions as set out under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
code”) contained in Appendix 14 to Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). As the Shares
were not listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until 14
February 2020, the CG code provisions were not applicable to the
Company before the Listing Date. To the best of the knowledge of
the Board, the Company has complied with the CG code since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report. The Directors will
periodically review on the Company’s corporate governance policies
and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to ensure compliance
with the code provisions from time to time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERER/|E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of eight
Directors including Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief executive officer), Mr.
Wun Chi Wai and Mr. Yu Chi Kwan as the executive Directors, and
Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman) and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis
as the non-executive Directors, and Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer,
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, and Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas as the
independent non-executive Directors.

There is a balance of skills and experience for the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 27 of
this annual report.

Save that Mr. CW Wan is the younger brother of Mr. MK Wan, and
two of them are cousin of Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis, there are
no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as operation and financial performance of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the chairman in drawing the agenda of each meeting and
each Director may request inclusion of matters in the agenda. All
Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG code, the Board should
meet regularly and regular board meetings should be held at least
four times per year. Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 14 February
2020, the Board did not hold Board meeting during the Year 2019.
After the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board held one Board meeting to review the 2019 annual results
of the Group, consider the payment of a final dividend and the
forthcoming annual general meeting, reappoint external auditors and
Board members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERER/|E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The attendance record of each Director at the Board committee
meetings held after the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report is set out in the table below:

EET»
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EXEe8KREHER LT RHRLKEEARFHRA
HBTHNEZSSRNIHIINWT :

Attendance/Number of Meetings

EEL RN

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Name of Director Board AGM Committee Committee Committee
EEHA EEg RRBFEAXE BHREEE REZEB FMZES
Mr. Woo Chu Fai [ikES e 11 0/0 N/A NE A N/A NE N/A NE
Mr. Wun Chi Wai HELE 11 0/0 N/A NE A N/A NE N/A NE
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan BEELE 11 0/0 N/A NE A N/A NE N/A NE
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRI|ITAE 11 0/0 N/A NE A 11 N/A i
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis BFRETKA 11 0/0 1/1 N/A NE 11
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer /MELAE 11 0/0 N/A T4 F N/A T F 1/1
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, B8S L 1#F1& =+ - BBS 11 0/0 il 11 11
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas REEAE 11 0/0 11 11 N/A T4

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board has at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has three independent non-
executive Directors and all of the three independent non-executive
Directors have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, the proportion of which can satisfy what is
required by rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules whereby independent non-
executive directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one third
of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient independence
element in the Board to safeguard the interest of Shareholders.

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment contract with the Company for a period of three years
from the Listing Date and is subject to termination provisions therein
and provisions on retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors
as set out in the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (the “Restated Articles”).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a period of three years from
the Listing Date and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors as set
out in the Restated Articles.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior
executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company. To oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”).

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations, and are invited to serve on the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

The Board has delegated to the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, with the responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board
from time to time and conducting the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group.

The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of references. Further details
of the Board Committees are set out in the sections headed
“Audit Committee”, “Nomination Committee” and “Remuneration
Committee” below.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 22 January 2020 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the
appointment of new Directors, taking into account a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry and regional experience, and length of service.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
on 22 January 2020 which sets out the criteria and process in the
nomination and appointment of Directors, aims to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and to ensure the Board’s continuity
and appropriate leadership. The Nomination Committee shall
identify candidates who are qualified/suitable to become a member
of the Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of candidates nominated for directorships. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of selection criteria as set out
in the Nomination Policy, including but not limited to, character and
integrity, qualification, potential contributions the candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skill, experience, independence
and gender diversity, the candidate’s willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board.

For the appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will first
identify individual(s) suitably qualified to become Board members
and assesses the independence of the proposed independent non-
executive Director(s). Then, the Nomination Committee will make
recommendation to the Board for consideration, having regard to
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. The Board will
confirm the appointment of the suitable candidate or recommend the
candidate to stand for election at a general meeting of the Company.
The candidate(s) who is/are appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board will be subject to re-election
by Shareholders at the next annual general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Restated Articles.

For the re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee will
also consider the retiring Directors based on the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, and assess their independence
before the Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the
Board to consider. After the Board considers each retiring Directors,
the Board will recommend the suitable retiring Directors(s) to stand
for re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Restated Articles. The Shareholders will approve the re-election of
Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and length
of service) of the Board on a regular basis at least annually and
diversity of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has set up a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
22 January 2020 with an aim to strike a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to develop and operate the business of the Group
and rewarding the Shareholders. According to the Dividend Policy,
in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall take into account the following
factors:

(@ the Company’s operating results, actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

()  the Group’s liquidity position;

(@ general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal and external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate and
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands, any applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
Restated Articles. The declaration and payment of future dividend
under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board’s determination
that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the Dividend Policy
from time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it
deems fit and necessary.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 January
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and the CG code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to, among other things, (i) maintain relationship with
the Company’s external auditor by including but not limited to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors, (i) review of financial information of
the Company; and (iii) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee consists of Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas and
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS as the independent non-executive
Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-executive
Director. Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas currently serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continuec)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year 2019, the Audit Committee has not held any
meetings as the Audit Committee was established on 22 January
2020 and the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 14
February 2020. Subsequent to the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report, the Audit Committee has held one meeting and
performed the following works:

(@ reviewed the Group’s annual audited financial statements for the
Year 2019;

(b) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

(c) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and related
matters; and

(d) considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the external auditors of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.

The Company’s annual results for the Year 2019 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22
January 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG code. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to, among other things, (i)
make recommendation to the Board on the policy and structure
for all directors and senior management’s remuneration and
remuneration policy; (ii) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposal with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management; (iv) review and
make recommendations to our Board on other remuneration-related
matters, including benefits-in-kinds and their compensation payable
to our Directors and senior management; and (v) consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its
subsidiaries.

EEZFEE

EZREEE ®)

RIE—NFE BEZZESTERTIMNSH
ERAEREEEN _T_THF—A_-_+-BHK
NRARBRZE_EFE A TNBEBIF £
M- REMHBABRNEEAFHRBY EEZEZE
SERITREE  UWBITU TR :

@ BHAKBER-_Z-NFENEEZEF
FAF R

b) BHGERINEE LT EEBRHY A
EEHHRROEELE

© BEAKEHNAIMEHRGENMERER &

(d) ZEEFRAEESNEBZ A N EE R IRR - A
FLULIR h R -

KRR ZE-—NFENEFEECHEZRZE
ZEH -
EEeHERTE e HUTESR S -
FFiMEESE

ARBRIR - E-_TEF—A -+ _HRIFMWNEE
& WER FHHRBEI S EREEE AT

EEmMBERE FMEEENIERER (H
TRE) NN EBESRSAEEEMNITM R
TR BRMRABRAEFT SR EBEES
HE2ZEEEN AR BERRRERHURILEE
BENFHES  (IN2BEERSREERED
FMmEESRLERER  (v) R H 5
HEEE (BRENESRRREEENEDRE
MERE) UREAEFTSRLERZSE RV
ERABLBARNNFE - PR
BARA R A R E M 2 7 A E B 0 8 (R 16
1 e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERER/|E

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continueq)

The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung
Kaizer and Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS as the independent non-
executive Directors, and Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis as the non-
executive Director. Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management are
determined with reference to the responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted and the performance of the Group. The Remuneration
Committee also ensures that no individual will be involved in
determining his/her own remuneration.

During the Year 2019, the Remuneration Committee has not held any
meetings as the Remuneration Committee was established on 22
January 2020 and the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
on 14 February 2020. Subsequent to the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the performance of them since the Listing.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the Year 2019 are as follows:
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Not exceeding HKD 1,000,000

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid employees is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continueq)
Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 January
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to,
among other things, (i) review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of our Board on a regular basis; (i) identify individual suitably
qualified to become Board members; (i) assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; (iv) make recommendations
to our Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; and
(v) make recommendations to our Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on our Board and/or senior management.

The Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
and Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas as the independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. Wan Man Keung as the non-executive Director.
Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer currently serves as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the Year 2019, the Nomination Committee has not held any
meetings as the Nomination Committee was established on 22
January 2020 and the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
on 14 February 2020. Subsequent to the Listing Date and up to
the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee has held
one meeting for reviewing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, reviewing the structure, size, and
composition of the Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and the aforesaid policies have
been maintained up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision D.3.1 of the CG code.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the
Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year 2019 in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty
that may cost significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
80 to 86 of this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year 2019, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services
was approximately MOP6.2 million. There is no remuneration for non-
audit services. The audit services of approximately MOP1.1 million
and MOP5.1 million being the annual audit fee for the Year 2019 and
the fee for the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the three years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
and seven months ended 31 July 2019 in connection with the Listing
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and
conducts a review on an ongoing basis. The Board acknowledges
that such risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
conducted review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company in aspects of the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions through the effort of the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The Group currently has no internal audit function and the Board
reviewed that it is more cost effective to engage an external
independent consultant instead of recruiting a team of internal
audit staff to perform such annual review function. During the Year
2019, LIF Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) was engaged to
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system. The Consultant worked closely with the Group to identify risk
components and risk owners in different aspects through interviews
with and workshops provided to the Group’s management. Also,
the Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate the adequacy of the
existing mitigation plans. In addition, an independent review was
conducted by the Consultant under the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisation of the Treadway Commission’s 2013 framework
(“COSO”) to identify weaknesses and enhance the effectiveness and
efficiency of the internal control system of the Group. Last but not
least, findings and recommendations resulting from the review were
reported to and discussed with the Audit Committee and the Board,
and the Consultant concluded that no significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance control and risk
management of the Group has been identified.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s
risk managements and internal control systems were in place and
effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chan Chi Hung, who is an
employee of the Company, as its Company Secretary. Mr. Chan has
confirmed that for the Year 2019, he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biography of Mr. Chan is set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of insider information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders and potential investors is essential for enhancing
investor relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company has adopted the
shareholders’ communication policy with the objective of ensuring
that the Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including the financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material development, governance and risk profile).
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and potential investors to make the informed investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains the
website of www.semhld.com; where up-to-date information on
the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access. Latest information of the Group
including annual and interim reports, announcements and other
corporate communications which will be sent to Shareholders and/
or published are updated on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website in a timely fashion.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Monday, 29 June 2020. The notice of the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolutions, voting procedures
and other relevant information, will be sent to the Shareholders at
least 21 days before the annual general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Restated Articles, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Restated Articles or the Cayman
Islands Company Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
“Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” of the Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Flat A, 7th Floor, Connaught Harbourfront House,
Nos. 35-36 Connaught Road West, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(email: general@semhld.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report. The
Restated Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present the first annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing electrical-related E&M engineering
works mainly consisted of supply, installation and maintenance of
electrical system, for new and existing buildings in the projects of
commercial and residential development, hotel development, casino
development and hotel renovation in Macau. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review on the Group’s business for the Year 2019 is set out under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law on
6 November 2015. In preparation of the Listing, the Group underwent
the reorganisation pursuant to which the Company became the
holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group on 6
November 2015. For details of the reorganisation, please refer to the
section headed “History, Reorganisation and Group Structure” in the
Prospectus.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Listing was completed on 14 February 2020 and net proceeds
from the placing and public offer was approximately MOP73.2 million
(after deducting all listing related expenses). Please refer to the
Management Discussion and Analysis section in this annual report for
more details of the use of proceeds.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year 2019 are set forth in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 87 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year 2019 (2018:
Nil).
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Monday, 29 June 2020.
A notice convening the meeting will be published in the Company’s
website and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 24 June 2020 to Monday, 29 June 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to establish entitlements of attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 23 June 2020.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four years is set out on page 160 of this annual
report. Such summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year 2019 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

There are no borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and
2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DEBENTURES
The Company did not issue any debenture during the Year 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Restated
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, the Company has
no reserves available for distribution to Shareholders.

Movements of the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the Year 2019 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 90 and 159, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year 2019, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 90.4% of the total revenue of the Group
and the largest customer accounted for approximately 48.3% of the
total revenue of the Group.

The five largest subcontractors of the Group accounted for
approximately 71.5% of the total subcontracting cost of the Group
and the largest subcontractor accounted for approximately 26.4% of
the total subcontracting cost of the Group.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 72.1% and
27.3% of the Group’s total purchases for the Year 2019, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

Employees

The Group has maintained good relationship with our employees.
The Group offers to our employees salary, bonuses and other
allowances. In general, the Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The
Group has assessed the performance of our employees, which forms
the basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses and
promotions.

Customers

The Group has established stable business relationships with our
major customers. Our long-term business relationships with our
major customers and suppliers would further enhance our market
recognition and enable us to attract more potential business
opportunities.

Suppliers and subcontractors

The Group carefully evaluate the performance of our suppliers and
select them based on a number of factors such as pricing, quality
of material or equipment provided, timeliness of delivery and ability
to comply with our requirements and specifications. The Group will
review and assess their performance on an ongoing basis.

The Group also closely assess the performance of our subcontractors
and select subcontractors based on their experience relevant to the
particular project as well as their availability and fee quotations. The
Group will review their performance on an ongoing basis. Subject to
the Group’s capacity, resource level, cost effectiveness, complexity of
the projects and customers’ requirements. The Group is accountable
to our customers for the works performed in a project, including
those carried out by our subcontractors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group’s related party transactions
as set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements
were continuing connected transactions, which were exempt
from all disclosure requirements, annual review and independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors since the Listing and up to the date of this annual report
are as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wun Chi Wai
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wan Man Keung (Chairman)
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer
Dr. Sham Chung Ping Alain, BBS
Mr. May Tai Keung Nicholas

In accordance with the Restated Articles, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new
Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next following general meeting after appointment.

TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANT

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding company
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
on the Listing date and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Restated Articles.

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing on the Listing date and are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Restated Articles.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company or any
member of the Group, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 19 to 27 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
the Listing Rules. The Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the requirements of the Model Code
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATIONS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in the note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as incentive to
eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Restated Articles, the Directors and other officers
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duties or supposed duties in their respective offices,
except such (if any) as shall be incurred or sustained through their
own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred,
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in any business which were in competition or
were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business which needs to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year 2019 was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Since the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 14 February
2020, the Company was not required to keep any register under
Part XV of the SFO as at 31 December 2019. As at the date of this
annual report, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, within
the meaning of the SFO, which had to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, once the Shares are listed, were as
follows:

Long positions in the ordinary Shares
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Total number

of Shares and

Approximate

underlying percentage

Shares of issued

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests held (L) share capital
Frishigia &%

HERG BRTRAHN

EENA 53 HxHE L) BHE DL
(Note 1)
(Hrat 1)

Mr. MK Wan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%

FRBESE REESEE R R (HiE2)
Notes: Biat -

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. SEM Enterprises Limited (“SEM Enterprises”) is owned as to 74.08%,
23.04% and 2.88% by Mr. MK Wan, Mr. CW Wun and Mr. Yu
respectively. Hence, Mr. MK Wan is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by SEM Enterprises under the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated

corporations of the Company

EERTBTBASRKRG - tHEH
RIGBREEEFZEBERAR =

RAEQTHEBZEENERBR 27 R

Approximate

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code.

Total number percentage
Capacity/Nature of Name of associated of shares of issued
Name of Directors Interests corporations held (L) share capital
BRITRAN
EEnR 513 #xtE LB B S FrishRin 48 81 (L) BEEStE
(Note 1)
(Btat1)
Mr. MK Wan Beneficial owner, interest in - SEM Enterprises 7,408 74.08%
FREAEE a controlled corporation,
interest held jointly with
others
ERlEAA  RXEHEE
Z W - BEE M7 H R
BZHEm
Mr. CW Wun Beneficial owner, interest SEM Enterprises 2,304 23.04%
FERELAE held jointly with others
EREaA  BEEMGHF
A ER
Mr. Yu Beneficial owner, interest SEM Enterprises 288 2.88%
B AE held jointly with others
EmlEAA - HEMGHF
Az ER
Note: ik:3
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the Shares were not listed on the Stock
Exchange. The respective Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and section 336 of the SFO were not applicable to the Company
as at 31 December 2019. As at the date of this annual report, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the interests or short positions
of the persons, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

FERRNAIRG R ERERG 22
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Total number

of Shares and

Approximate

underlying percentage
Shares of issued
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests held (L) share capital
Frishgid &
HERG ERITRAN
IREREE o270 $23: 31 BHL) BA Bt
(Note 1)
(Htat1)
SEM Enterprises Beneficial interest (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
EnEn (Mit2)
Ms. Lam Yin Interest of spouse (Note 2) 1,500,000,000 75%
M+ Be B (Hat2)
Notes: Vi

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Ms. Lam Yin is the wife of Mr. MK Wan and is deemed to be interested
in the Shares which are interested by Mr. MK Wan under the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, as at the date of this annual report, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest and short
position in Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration
to the Company that for the Year 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, he/she/it and his/her/its associates have complied
with the terms of non-competition undertakings (“Non-Competition
Undertakings”) given in favour of the Company which are contained
in the Deed of Non-Competition Undertaking. Details of the Non-
Competition Undertakings are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
status of compliance by each of the controlling Shareholders with
the undertakings in the Non-Competition Undertakings and as far
as the independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there
is no breach of any of the undertakings in the Non-Competition
Undertakings.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year 2019 or subsisted
at the end of the Year 2019.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 January 2020, the Company conditionally adopted the share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) as incentive or reward
for contributions that the eligible participants have made or may
make to the Group. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any employee, advisor, consultant,
service provider, agent, client, partner or joint-venture partner of the
Company or its subsidiary (including any Director or any director of
the Group’s subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time employment
with or otherwise engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at
the time when an option is granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme or any person who, in the absolute discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for the Shares thereby linking their interest
with that of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, in
their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible Participants. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of adoption, after which period no further options will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted or exercised prior thereto or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme (together
with options which may be granted under any other share option
schemes) shall not exceed such number of Shares as equals to 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the Listing Date.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each grantee (including both exercised or
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueq)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board, but in any event will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of the particular
option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the offer date of the
particular option.

There were no share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme nor were any share options granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual report. The
total number of Shares available for grant under the scheme was
200,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 28 to 42 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conduct, employment and the environment. The
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”, which forms part of
this annual report, is set out on pages 59 to 79 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, save as the non-compliance disclosed in
the section headed “Business — Non-compliance” in the Prospectus,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact
on the business and operation of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float required under the Listing Rules since the
Listing and up to the date of this annual report.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters,
which include the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year 2019 have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Man Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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INTRODUCTION

SEM Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in provision of
electrical and mechanical (“E&M”) engineering services. During
a decade of development, the Group realises corporate social
responsibility (“CSR”) is an indispensable aspect to be incorporated in
long-term development strategy. With this regard, the Group gradually
enhances operational practices and develops CSR standards in a
sustainable manner. Looking forward, the Group commits to establish
a corporate culture that is better aligned with the expectations from
stakeholders.

The Group is pleased to present its first Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which summarises the
Group’s initiatives and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. The ESG Report covers
the business impact for one of the major operating subsidiaries in
Macau, Ready System Engineering Limited. The ESG Report has
been prepared in compliance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Stakeholder Engagement

Listening to stakeholders is one vital mean in assisting the Group to
identify and balance risks from difference perspectives, which helps
it to develop policies and set corporate goals. The Group keeps
abreast of stakeholders’ expectations through various communication
channels. Below sets forth the channels used for communication with
respective stakeholder group.
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INTRODUCTION (continueq) =2
Stakeholder Engagement (Continued) KREZH®)
Stakeholder Group Communication Channel
BirEERE BERE
Customers e  Customer satisfactory surveys
®P s XEFPBMEERD
° Project meeting
e HEHEEHR
Employees e Annual appraisal
E& e FEIE
e Training
° 1=
e Meetings

Suppliers/Sub-contractors

= A
° Internal announcement

o RERME

e Project meeting

HER, DEn e HBEEH

e Supplier assessment

o BRI

e  Site visiting

e EMER
Investors e General meeting
REE e BEXE

Community groups

it e

° Annual and interim reports
o FERFHRE

e  (Circular/announcement

o B/

e  Corporate website

e NEIAUL

° Industrial dinner

s TEBE

e  (CSR social activity

e NEHEEFEHEEH

The Group values the feedback from stakeholders. If you have any AEBEREFMHEOREEZR - B NTUOHIR
thoughts and suggestions on the ESG Report, please share themto 38 it @ RE A REGEMIERES @B

the Group at general@semhld.com.

general@semhld.com AR E @55 = o
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|NTRODUCT|ON (Continued)
Materiality Assessment

The Group undertook materiality assessment to ensure the ESG
Report addresses concerns from stakeholders. The assessment
started from identifying CSR issues from four different aspects,
including environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practice and community investment. Based on the 23
issues identified, interviews and questionnaires were conducted to
collect opinions from internal and external stakeholders.

A materiality matrix was developed based on the replies from
stakeholders, which 15 critical issues were identified. Among the
critical issues, approximately 47% are related to employment and
labour practices, followed by operational practices at approximately
33%, and environment protection at approximately 20%.
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INTRODUCTION (continued)
Materiality Assessment (Continuead)

Details of the 15 critical issues are listed below:

Wastes management
Environment protection

Energy use and efficiency
Environment protection

Natural resource management
Environment protection

Employment management
Employment and labour practices

Discrimination and equal opportunity
Employment and labour practices

Promotion and compensation system
Employment and labour practices

Other benefits and welfare
Employment and labour practices

Employment and labour practices

Employment and labour practices

Development and training
Employment and labour practices

Quallity assurance
Operational practices

Anti-corruption
Operational practices

Whistle-blowing policy
Operational practices

Supply chain management
Operational practices

Sub-contractor management
Operational practices

Prevention of child labour and forced labour

Safety working environment and occupational hazards
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to identify sources that may have potential
direct and indirect impacts to the environment from its operation
in various aspects including the use of materials and resources,
waste management, water pollution and air emission. In case any
are identified, the Group commits to work against these sources
to minimise the impact and seek alternatives to work around.
Environment management system was established focusing in wastes
reduction and resources saving and efficiency which will be discussed
in turn below.

During the reporting year, the Group was not prosecuted for any
breach of any applicable environment laws and regulations, including
but not limited to Law no. 2/91/M regarding the environment law
of Macau and Law no. 8/2014 regarding the law of prevention and
control of ambient noise.

Emissions

Sources of emissions

The Group’s E&M works mainly consisted of supply, installation and
maintenance of various electrical system such as energy supply
system, escalator and lift, heating system, ventilation system, air
conditioning system, low voltage system, distribution board and
switchboard, communication lines system, building automation
system, lightning protection system, fire detection and protection
system, security and alarm system, and plumbing and drainage
system.

These works are usually manual works which do not require intensive
heating process (e.g. welding), and do not involve the use of heavy
machines and equipment. As such, air emissions resulted from
heating and fuel combustion activities are limited.

For waste emissions, the Group does not generate any hazardous
waste, and wastage of construction materials is the only non-
hazardous waste generated from its works. These wastages are
usually scraps cut off from materials, such as cables and copper,
during the installation process due to difference in size of the
materials employed and the dimension of the working structure.
However, the amounts generated are limited. Scraps are disposed to
on site collection facilities which are managed by employers or main
contractors.

General activities associated to its business operations will also
generate emissions. They include daily general usage of gasoline
fuels, electricity and water from staff quarters, fuels consumed from
motor vehicle for travelling between construction sites, and paper
usage for construction drawing and general documentation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)
Emissions (Continueq)

Measures and initiatives

Despite emissions from the E&M works are minimal, the Group
continuously employs measures to maintain and improve the way to
build in a sustainable manner.

Waste management is always a crucial subject of the Group as it
creates great cost saving opportunities. With this regard, the Group
reviews consistency of workings drawings and specifications to avoid
wastages of material as a result of possible re-work. For procurement,
the Group purchases materials with the most suitable size to reduce
excessive cut-offs and re-use scraps materials where possible.

With respect to air emissions, the Group promotes resources saving
and efficiency to reduce emissions for its activities from staff quarter
and general office. For details of the measures and initiatives, please
refer to the section headed “Use of Resources” in the ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq) IRIBIRE »)
Emissions (Continued) BER Y (&)
Measures and initiatives Continued) BiERER®E)
Below sets out the KPIs for difference types of emissions during the X & 5| T RIERI TN RE FEE BB EN
reporting year. BT o
Unit 2019
B —E-hEF
Gaseous Fuel Consumption Emissions 82 A HEHER Y
NOx Emissions R B kg T7 165,756.74
SOx Emissions mEE R Y kg T%& 824.66
Vehicles Emissions BB
NOx Emissions REHE D Note 1 fifzE1 kg T3 =
SOx Emissions maE Note 1 fifzE1 kg T3 =
PM Emissions PMEBER ) Note 1 fiisE1 kg F5% -
Greenhouse Gas Emission in CO2e BERBEHERY (A =HE1bik
EEHE)
Scope 1 — Direct Emissions SE1-EEERY
Stationary combustion sources TEHRIE TR tonnes 1 2.70
Mobile combustion sources BB R Note 1 Hi3E1 tonnes It =
Scope 2 — "Energy Indirect” Emissions E2—[peREE | P
Electricity purchased SNBE S Note 2 fif5£2 tonnes M& 83.13
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions &1 [E 3 — K ZE ey
Paper waste disposed at landfills RIS E B K tonnes M 713
Electricity used for processing fresh BT B0 P9 R B2 K 7K
water and sewage by government KI5k ERARE S
department Note 3 fif5E3 tonnes M§ 0.89
Non-Hazardous Waste BEBEY
Paper MR tonnes Mg 1.49
Notes: Hyat

1. Motor vehicle related emissions data are not available for the reporting 1. HRNEERFAMEIE  MESFELEEKD S

year as the relevant data cannot be retrieved. Collection mechanism was HEENBEREE - RPE 2RI RE#S BTN T
established and the relevant KPI will be available in the next ESG report. MIRE g REAMEEHBABBRETIER -

2. For electricity supplied by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau 2. BURFIENRHAERAF ([CEMD)HHEMS -
(“CEM”), the Emission Factor (0.8830kg/kWh) is available in CEM's PEREA 7(0.8830F 72 /T ELB) AJ ECEM =&
Sustainability Report 2018. —N\FAHBEERBEFER -

3. For water supplied from Macao Water, the Emission Factor 3. BUEPIBEHRKEHKE - BEMEF(0.2740 T 5=

(0.2740kg/m?) is available from Macao Water's Sustainability Report SNFR)ERPIAERK =T NFAFEE
2018. BREFRER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)
Use of Resources

The Group keeps promoting green concepts to raise employee’s
awareness about the environment footprint created from daily
operations. In order to build a green working environment, the Group
continuously develops and implements environmental policies and
practices in achieving resources saving and efficiency.

Green Procurement
AREIREE

o 0
e  Evaluate the usage of materials to

avoid overstock

o FHAMBHEREBER  BREFHBE

o Purchases supplies with recycled
content

o BEALIKLAFEM

e  Select energy efficiency electrical
appliances

. EEHEES

Energy saving

ERAIBEIR

e  Maintain the office air-conditioning at
an average temperature of 25 degrees

Celsius
o WAEARRFHEERIBNR2BER
E

e  Switch off lights, air-conditioners and
all other electronic devices when not in
use

s TNMERANEMEE - - RRARFBEHAM
TTRE

RIBRE»

BERER

AEBTHHESEEDS  URSEIHAREE
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RE ARETEHERERRTEERERNA
BEREREHRIRE

Paper saving

Paranld o R 71 =)
= **%

Equip photocopier with one tray for
single-sided paper and another for
new paper

R VI E — A AR E EEAR
MBRRS —EARRENARNARS
Encourage double-sided printing
SXENEE T E]

Promote the use of electronic
communication and documentation

REEAEFEAEXXMH

Water saving

PP
B4 FH 7k

Review water bills to detect abnormal
consumption
EEKBEUEHETERE

Inspect water leakage regularly

TEHRERKIER
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)
Use of Resources (Continued)

During the reporting year, the Group major resources consumptions
were sourced from the electricity and water consumed by office and
staff quarters for daily operation/living. The Group did not encounter
any issue in sourcing water. Below sets out the KPIs for the
consumption of respective sources.

RIBRE»

BiRER®

RBEEE  AEENTEEREEEARA
EREIBEAELE,/HEMEENKE &
£ B KBS O BN o TXEI R RN E
M BRERIEE -

Unit 2019
B —E-hE
Energy Consumption HETREAE
Office WNE KWh F BB 9,119.00
Staff-quarters BIE® KWh F 5 85,024.00
Energy Consumption Intensity BERHERE KWh/unit 11,767.88
TR, BAL
Water Consumption KiEFE
Staff-quarters ERREES m?3 32 7 K 1,621.00
Water Consumption Intensity KEFERE m/unit 231.57
SR BT

Notes:

1. The Group is unable to quantify the amount of water consumption used
in the office premise which were provided by landlords and shared
among different tenants

2. The disclosure for the use of packaging materials is not relevant to the
Group’s businesses

The Environment and Natural Resources

Despite the Group’s E&M works will not have direct significant impact
to the environment, the quality of its works may lead to serious
environment issues, such as unintentional leakage, if systems are not
properly installed. The Group committed to execute a robust quality
management system to ensure that system can be operated as
intended. Details of the quality management system are discussed
under the section headed “Product Responsibility” in the ESG Report.

Wi
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“E-NEFRERE  HEREREE

SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Employment

Human resources are the cornerstone of the Group, and the Group
commits to shoulder the responsibility to provide them with safe
working environment and support their career advancement.

The Group is subject to labour laws and regulations which includes,
but not limited to, Labour Relations Law, Employees' Compensation
Insurance Ordinance, Social Security System, laws and regulations
for the employment of non-resident worker, regulation on prohibition
of illegal work and lists of restricted and prohibited works provided by
minors.

To ensure compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations,
the Group have established human resource management system to
govern, among others, recruitment process, hiring and termination
procedures, promotion and compensation system, health and safety
management and training and development program of the Group.

Employee handbook will be circulated at the commencement of
employment and during employment (if there are any updates) to
ensure employees are aware of the structure, objectives and policies
of the Group’s human resource management system.

The Group respects human rights and strictly prohibited any act of
discrimination in the workplace. To ensure this can be eliminated,
standard performance criteria are used to ensure that every employee
are evaluated equally and consistently. Gender, age, race, skin color,
nationality, religion and political affiliation will never be a consider
factor for performance evaluation. In additions, the Group encourages
employee to voice out if any dishonorable act is observed.
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REBERE TS TERRIER  BRETRR(E
BEEE) - (REBRERRED) (HLEREH
B - CERIMNLEBERMEITAR) - (B LIEIBE
THERE) ARCRFI RZELERKFANTIESE)

RERETHEBYS DERNER  AREEREY
ANEREBRE NURE (AP ) HiEEiE -
BAKRERRF BARFHGE RERLZ2
I AR AR BRI R B R AT A -

AT R R 40 B (R (R EA TR (B E R &
HEBTFM UEREETHEAKRBANERE
BRANGE  BERBE -

AEBEEE AW BRIELELE T ESPTE AR
IR RERMBZEFTA  BRAEREEER
SEMRAERERETTE -2 o 1Hh
Fik Bk EE BE FELBAERET
ERBELERNEBREER - 14N - AREZE
BEGEZRETATRITAKBESRR -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2019

—B-HEBS  HEREAHE

SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR

PRACTICES (continuea)
Employment (Continued)

Below set forth KPIs of the Group’s employment:

{1 (4

HE-EEBRESIER =

T XEI AR B R (7 1 B iR A AR

Number of
employees
2019
EEAB
—F-hF
Workforce by gender BiHRESHES
Male S 17
Female 7 6
Workforce by age group BEFERERESNES
30 or below 305X AT 2
31-50 31 E507% 13
51 or above 51BR8A £ 8
Workforce by job position BIEEMEIZHNES
Senior management SRERE 9
Middle management RRERERE 6
Entry level M 8
Workforce by geographical region BRMESISHES
Macau B P 9
Hong Kong BB 12
Mainland China B AT 2
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (continueq)

Health and Safety

Risks of accidents and injuries to workers in construction sites are
inherent. The Group has established occupational health and safety
management system to minimise accidents in the workplace and

HE-EEBRESIER =

RRERZR

BETHTANSRELBERARBEGEE - &~
SEERYBEERELE2EERS  UKITHE
ST E U E & D LR THARBRBERER
FEHREE - RREFE WEELETERETHE

ensure work sites are operated in compliance with relevant law and

regulation. During the reporting year, no work injuries nor work- BEMETFH -
related fatalities have been occurred.
W
Personal safety and Site supervisors Emergency protocol
education THTE JE =
ANGZLHHYE Perform site visits and Report to site

Distribute safety
manuals to all workers
MBI ARELE
Fi

Offer training courses
to ensure workers are
familiar with the safety
rules

RAIEIIERIE - UARE
RIARAZLZEZRAA
Wear personal
protective equipment
FEREAY #EEE

inspections regularly
EHETEMERK
BE

Stop/suspend any
unsafe acts and
dangerous operations
Ei/EEERTE
EHITRRERIESE -
Review safety rules and
policies regularly
EHEMHZ 2RI K
R

supervisor to ensure
injured worker receive
immediately medical
treatment
mMIMEEFRE - N
HRZIE T ASEE
RIRE

Report such work
injury to the Labour
Affairs Bureau and
insurer within the
stipulated time
TEHERRARST
BB RRR D FHR
HEEBEIE

&

Machine maintenance

Check to ensure all
machines are in good
condition before they
are put into service
ERACARETR
BRI BHERE
R 4F AR RE

Maintain updated list
of machines to ensure
regular maintenance is
performed
REBMENEIFE
NHERAITERRE -
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (continueq)

Development and Training

As an E&M engineering company, the development and training
program heavily focus in the safety area. Due to the nature of the
Group’s operating practice, it often hires foreign workers from labour
quota and engages sub-contractors to carry out its works. As such,
the Group must provide adequate safety training to ensure employees
and employees of sub-contractors are familiar with the Group’s safety

policy.

Our training programs are developed on project basis, this is because
the risk of injuries associated to the works content may vary. The
Group training programs cover various aspects which include, among
others, machine operation, work at height, work in hot weather, on-
site materials management, electricity application, fire prevention and
emergency procedure.

During the reporting year, the Group offered internal safety training
courses to 135 workers, including our employees and employees of
sub-contractor, and the average training hours completed per worker
was approximately 18 hours.

Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited as stipulated by law
and regulations mentioned in the section headed “Employment”.
With this regard, the Group has established recruitment procedure
which requires that identity, age and other personal information of all
job applicants must be verified to ensure that they are physically and
conditionally qualified to be hired.

HE-EEBRESIER =

R &

ERRETRAR  AEEFIFETEMEIL
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Suppliers and sub-contractors are vital business partner of the Group
as they contribute in assisting the Group towards quality excellence.
Supplier/sub-contractor management policy was established which
defines the robust requirements and procedure in monitoring the
selection of suppliers and sub-contractors. Standard acceptance
procedure must be performed before new supplier and sub-
contractor are engaged. All approved suppliers and sub-contractors
are recorded in an internal approved list and are subject to regular
evaluation. Generally, the Group will invite more than one supplier/
sub-contractors from the approved list for each order/sub-contracting
work for quotation purpose.

Product Responsibility

Quiality control is one crucial process to the Group’s business as
this is the foundation leading to the Group’s success. The Group
established comprehensive policy governing the required procedure
to be performed at the inception and completion of a project. To
ensure the quality of project implementation, members are assigned
to project teams according to complexity and scale of the project,
and each team member was assigned with specified duties.

Site supervisor is responsible for monitoring the quality of works
of employee and sub-contractors in real time. Project’s progress
meetings are held regularly to ensure works meet customers’
specification, completed according to schedule and comply with all
relevant regulatory requirement. Furthermore, inspection checks are
performed for all materials, machineries and equipment delivered
before they are employed.

In addition, the Group, together with the customers, will perform site
acceptance test for all electrical system installed to ensure conformity
to specifications. During the reporting year, the Group have not
received any complaint or request for any kind of compensation from
our customers due to quality issue in relation to works performed.

HE-EEER
HrEpEEE

HERRDEERAEEEREZNEBEIER
# RERREXHHASEEREMRENE
ERER - AEEE R HER, DEREER
R ZBRAEEREZHER LD BEMES
EXREEF REAFHEFIRDBE A &
AHITRENZRNER - MAERATHNHEER LS
BREIGREN AR ANEE © WAETTE R -
—RME  ARESKRBTEERF —BALH
[ER,/ DBEEMTRE, /DB ITIZETRE -

EmRE

HERHRAKEXBNERER RESER
AEERSRINNRE - REEC HERENR
BRI ERELBERITHREFNEEBER - R
RBEBBERMNEER AKERERABNERKE
KRR AAE BB KB SEREKKE D
FLfEERE -

THIEREAREREEN S BEANIFEXR -
AEEBTHRITRBERSH  NERTER
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continueq)
Anti-corruption

The Group commits to maintain a corporate culture with integrity,
probity and accountability through the establishment of relevant anti-
corruption policies. Code of conduct, conflict of interest policy and
privacy and confidentiality information were covered in the Group’s
internal control manuals which clearly defines the moral standards it
desired. In additions, corruption, bribery or fraud in any form is strictly
prohibited. Whistleblowing policy was established to allow employees
to report any misconduct or malpractice events observed on a
confidential platform.

During the reporting year, there were no legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during the
reporting period.

SOCIAL - COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group commits to support the communities through social
participation and had dedicated its focus in contributing the
environment, labour needs and health. The Group actively shares
social affairs to employees so as to increase their awareness to the
community, and eventually repay the society through participating
in social events and helping vulnerable groups. Looking forward,
the Group hopes to join hand with stakeholders to better serve the
community.

HE-
REB
A& BB REBHERNR EEBE RN -
FHEREEMNEE XL - AEE P S F 7
BETAER - FEERREURLBRREE
B EORRAEA R BRI s REE

Z2EER»

AR OERS - BRI - RFEH TR BEK
2 OASEERNRETAREFEROIATE
FRSEREY -
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ESG CONTENT INDEX

RIZ - #HERER

REZES|

Aspect KPI Description Section reference

e

BE ERIERE BEEH
A. Environmental
ARIE
Emissions Al General Disclosure Environmental
23587 —REEFE Protection
Information on: IRIBIRE
ERABRRRERBHM  BESKkA LT  AERE
EREER
a) the policies; and
a) BERER: R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
b) ETHEITABBEAZEBNEEEEZ LA ER -

Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
HE R R R N AR RE HE PR © BER

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per  HEHH
facility).

BERBAYNRE UABAE) X (ER) BE (WMASES
B BIERMTE) °

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per  HE¥
facility).

FELABEEEEDRE UBHE) R (WER) BE (WAE
ERB  SEREHE) -

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where ~ Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per  BERY
facility).

FEAESEEDRS UBHE) X (ER) BE (NS
ERER - SHRIEHE) -

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results ~ Emissions
achieved. e
T R AR HE B E B TR e SR PSR R o

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Emissions
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. 23587

WA T R EE RN SR  RIEE & B RS R
BRE -
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ESG CONTENT |NDEX(Conﬂnueo9 I«%iﬁ M ?‘igﬁgiﬁ

Description

ENER

RABZES|»

Section reference

LR

Aspect KPI
2k
BE
A. Environmental (Continueq)
ARIE (&)
Use of Resources A2
&R
A2.1
A2.2
A2.3
A2.4
A2.5
The Environment and A3
Natural Resources
BRERRAER
A3.1

General Disclosure

— B EEE

Information on:

B

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BREREIR(BIERR  KEEMRMED) BERNER -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

REAEDHEER LEEER(NE - KR LEER
BE(WAGESEN BHERBAE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BEKERER (WAGESEN BEKBAHE) -
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

et BR8P R SR B SR PR SBCR -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
it SRERE A AKOR AT B E R RE - A RBBA K s B
RETGRR -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BRRATABREMBNGEE (UETE) X (WER) SEEE
52 e

General Disclosure

— B EEE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
BAREITALIRBERAAERER B AL EHBCE -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

Bl X EHHIRBEIRAERNERTERERRERE
BT BT -

Use of Resources
AR A

Use of Resources
BIRE A

Use of Resources

BIREA

Use of Resources

BREA

Use of Resources

BIREMA

Not relevant

sl

The Environment and
Natural Resources
RIERRAER

The Environment and
Natural Resources
RIERRAER
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) I‘%iﬁ HEREBABES @
Aspect KPI Description Section reference
22F:¢]
BE EBIER BEEH
B. Social
B.#&
Employment B1 General Disclosure Employment
= —RFEEFEH =

Information on:
R REE  BERSEA  ITIENH - BRE TEKe -
Zft - RIBRIAREAREREFE

a) the policies; and
a) HEER K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

b) BTHETABEAZENEENOERIRIIER

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment
geographical region. (=
R EERL  FRAENRMEESHESEH -
Health and Safety B2 General Disclosure Health and Safety
edc b — B FEFERE REEZE

Information on:

FHRMEZETEREMREREEHEBELFEEN

a) the policies; and

a) HEER K

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

b) BTHBEITABEAZENHEREZRRMNES -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and Safety
ETEREMETHAB R - REEZTE

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
EIGEATIERS - RESEZR

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Health and Safety
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. REETE

F PR AN OB R R PR B 22 240 0 - ARARRIRIT R BRI % ©
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continuead)

RABZES|»

Aspect KPI Description Section reference
22F:¢]

Em| EXIEE il 8EEM

B. Social (Continued)

B.itE (&

Development and Training

R LTI

Labour Standards
B T AR

Supply Chain Management
e e s

B3

B4

B5

B5.2

General Disclosure

— B EEE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRI ES BT TIERE & M H MR a IR - 5531

B o

General Disclosure

— BB EFE

Information on:

BRABLEET REHSTH :

a) the policies; and

a) BUERAR: &k

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forces labour.

b) ETHEITABBEAZEBNEEEEZ LA ER -

General Disclosure

— B FEFERE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.

ERHEENRR I SRR B

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number

of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how

they are implemented and monitored.

HRBREEAEERNEN  mERTERENNHESR

BARBEEMNNRTRERTE -

Annual Report

Development and
Training
R N

Labour Standards
B T A

Supply Chain
Management
HERER

Supply Chain
Management

HregEE s
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ESG CONTENT INDEX (Continuead)

Aspect

B

KPI
2k

RIZ - #HERER

Description

ENER

RABZES|

Section reference

LR

B. Social (Continueq)
B.it+& (&)

Product Responsibility
EmEE

B6

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

General Disclosure

—RFEFEE

Information on:
ERAMRHESKRENRRERZS - E
BRI AR

a) the policies; and

a) HBEER: K

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

o
]
o
X
=
iR
L

significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
b) BFHBEITAGBERTENEBEELROINER -
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
EEHREXERAHT AL RERIEHMADKN AL
Number of products and service-related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
BEEBANERRRBHIRFEEAREET% -
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
M EEERRENBEEGBENED -
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
il S 4 E AR M B R T e
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,

how they are implemented and monitored.
HUE BB BB RE RALBBE - A RAEBRITRERFA -

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Not relevant
T

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Not relevant

T HaRE

Product Responsibility
EmAEME

Not relevant

sl



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2019
—E-NFRE - HERERRE

ESG CONTENT INDEX (continueq) RIB-HERERABES»
Aspect KPI Description Section reference
e
BE ERIERE BEZEM
B. Social (Continueq)
B.i+& (&)
Anti-corruption B7 General Disclosure Anti-corruption
REBE —RFEFEE REBE
Information on:
BAM IR - 1R - MEFRERER
a) the policies; and
a) BERAR: Kk
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.
b) BFEHETABERTENEBEELBROINER -
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  Anti-corruption
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting RERE
period and the outcomes of the cases.
RBEHANEETASIHEEREYEEENESHFARY
BBIE REFFAAER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. REB
Ll S R B BRIEF  ARMEERITRERFTE -
Community Investment B8 General Disclosure Community Investment
HERE —RFEFEE HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRALMBRSERTBETACENELRTERBRELE
BEEEE EAEFZEOBUR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BE RS

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SEM HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SEM
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

FARE SR

Recognition of revenue and margins from electrical
and mechanical engineering services

EZKEEY RIEW TR a5 REF

We identified the recognition of revenue and margins
from electrical and mechanical engineering services as
a key audit matter due to the involvement of significant
management estimates in determining the contract
revenue and margins for each electrical and mechanical
engineering contract in progress.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised revenue of approximately MOP 203,087,000
mainly from provision of electrical and mechanical
engineering services to hotels and casino, commercial
and residential properties in Macau by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end
of the reporting period as disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. As set out in note 3
to the consolidated financial statements, the amounts of
revenue and margins recognised reflect the management’s
estimate of each contract’s outcome and stage of
completion, which were based on the input method by
considering the proportion of contract costs incurred
for the work performed to the end of the reporting date,
relative to the total estimated costs of the contract at
completion.

MR NEESETTEN RERTRENNA KSR
BNESREREREMG  RABGEIKXREEN LB
PR T2 ARG RO Wt e B A R MRS At B IR

REBEE-T-NFT+_A=T—HLFE  WEEH%
WEAMT4AEE BEEELSERRERRANE
15 72 B B BR 78 78 W 25 49 203,087,000 FI 7T » = E R B
FRFIHEE MRS  BEREEMEREHRE N LK
PRTAZMRTS - AR A M IS AR M IS AT E - EMR WS
SRRANRREEBHEAOERMTKRERNMEE
HENEREERNBEPRBETIREENALORAE
STAR I & BB R AR AL RIZ PR E R MV B AUK ©

FEARESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AT REAREFTBENG X

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue and
margins from electrical and mechanical engineering services
included:

e Understanding key controls on how management
estimates and revises the total contract costs and
margins and recognises revenue from electrical and
mechanical engineering services;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the total estimated
contract costs of significant projects by checking against
quotations, agreements or other correspondences
provided by subcontractors or suppliers, on a sample
basis;

e  FEvaluating the reasonableness of the estimated margins
of significant projects, on a sample basis, taking into
account of the complexity and duration of the projects
and margins of similar completed projects;

BPEERRAREE I RER I ERE K E BN 2
e :
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key audit matter

A= SR

FARETEE»

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AT RIZARET EENS X

Examining the accuracy of costs incurred to date and
stage of completion by checking the certificates or
invoices issued by the subcontractors or suppliers, on
a sample basis; and through our discussion with the
project managers; and

Evaluating the reliability of the management’s forecast, on
a sample basis, by comparing the total actual contract
costs incurred at completion of completed projects
against the total budgeted contract costs.

BBMEEED BERREELANEEXRERE
BIUAE MR (TREEE TN A B RERELON
AEERELE |
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hiz 8

BERREFHRHUHEMERAR - Kb EE2BET
FERFRANGEE  ETERGAMBHRR LR
(REOEER - Gk e

BPHGRAMBREANBELAL TREEMES -
BT HZEEMEERRTALANERS

E
FBARMERAMBERERNOEFN  RANEELE

BEEMES  Fi@EiET ZEEMESER
HEPBEHRR AR MERTERETABERNIERTF
EEAEBEREUFFEERBRRANER -
ERBAEHTH I IREMRBREMESR
FHEEXRERRL BT EREZFTE -&EE
FH - BB EMRS -

EEREABRGESMBHRRAK
BNEE

BERAERABERBEREESTMASEMN(E
B BHEEA) RBEECR ARG K EZXK
BREEEMT NSV BEHRE  YHERSR
EERE M B HREROBE N FEARRTFRERM
BYHNEAERRAMFORNLIES AR

ERBEAVBRRE EFRENE E5E
FERKENEE N  TEBERBRATHERSEL
EHRMNEE URERFELERSTER
RIFEEAER BESEBRIFLELE 5l
BEEMERNBRTR -

Annual Report FE 4 2019 83



84 SEM Holdings Limited #8325 R A A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chung Chin Cheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HeEBmkEMEEWGER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\&F
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
B TR TR T
Revenue W as 5 203,087 185,229
Cost of sales SHE A (147,063) (128,888)
Gross profit E7 56,024 56,341
Other income H g A 7 176 123
Impairment losses VEREY T 8 (621) =
Administrative expenses TR (10,986) (6,275)
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEFE (156) (36)
Listing expenses WX 9 (17,150) (1,740)
Profit before taxation B 54 A g 7 9 27,287 48,413
Taxation g 11 (7,020) (6,927)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A% Al 2 2 T U 25 42 58
for the year 20,267 41,486
Earnings per share (MOP cent) FRREF CRFIML)
Basic R 13 1.35 2.50
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBR IR

At 31 December 2019 R=ZE—NF+=-A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\&F
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
B TR FRFIT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WE R 14 15,665 15,374
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables R E 5 R R H A
FE W R IR 15 46,924 42,607
Contract assets ABHE E 16 68,425 50,964
Amount due from a director Bl —& %%%’\Iﬁ 17 1,016 1,012
Amount due from immediate holding FEW B B R A B RIR
company 17 586 586
Amount due from a related company JE W — I B8 A Bl 3IE 17 - 213
Pledged bank deposits BEHERIRITER 18 34,110 29,021
Time deposit TEHFE R 18 7,055 7,371
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 18 33,552 26,951
191,668 158,725
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables ERESERK
H fth fE T3R8 19 45,714 17,401
Contract liabilities aHak 16 63 14,539
Lease liabilities fﬂ,%\ =L 20 1,101 672
Amount due to a director R —R2ESEHIE 21 367 360
Amounts due to related companies FETREE R R SRIE 21 - 164
Taxation payable FEHLIE 8,456 9,823
55,701 42,959
Net current assets mEBEERE 135,967 115,766

Total assets less current liabilities 2 EER A EE 151,632 131,140



At 31 December 2019 R =Z—

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31

NE+=-A=+—H

¥RBEME
HERE

BEXRfEE
(LN
fFE

March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Wan Man Keung
FREEE
Non-executive Director

FHITEF

NOTES
M RE
20
22
E87TE159H K

=
N

2019
—F-NF
MOP’000
FRFMT

225

151,407

464
150,943

151,407

2018
—F-N\F
MOP’000
TRFT

131,140

464

130,676

131,140

MERRER T _TF=

A=+ BREFSHERRENE X H TS

EERREE:

Mr. Woo Chu Fai
tHEEE S E

Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRHE AEL
Share Share Legal Accumulated
capital premium reserve profits Total
TN i E BERE RAFHEF Lok
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT FHEMT FRMT TRMT FHEMT
(Note)
(Hiit)
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZE-\E—HA—H 516 10,263 13 92,787 108,579
Profit and total comprehensive ~ F R FI R 2 A M 858
income for the year - - - 41,486 41,486
Repurchase of shares (hote 22) 1 B[l (417 22) (52) (10,263) - (3,610) (13,925)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-N\&+-_A=+—-H 464 - 13 130,663 131,140
Profit and total comprehensive R R 2 E iz A58
income for the year - - - 20,267 20,267
At 31 December 2019 R-E-N&+-B=+—H 464 - 13 150,930 151,407

Note: In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau
Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
(“Macau”), the company registered in Macau is required to transfer part
of its profits of each accounting period of not less than 25% to legal
reserve, until the amount reaches half of its share capital.

M ARBCREARKEMERPIEFRITHRE (RPT])
EEH) F377 i MRFIEMM AR ARNE S
STHIRE O REFEM 5% BIEEE G B
ERERBERERERRNFEHABIL -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= =B
17 \éiﬁﬁlﬁié‘%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—EB-hE —ZT—N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TP T
Operating activities R EE)
Profit before taxation B 54 A g 7 27,287 48,413
Adjustments for: AT ZIBIEL FHE
Depreciation of property, plant and - BEREZEITE
equipment 2,136 1,530
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE R&H 2 EBE
equipment 3 =
Interest income MEUA (174) (123)
Impairment losses recognised on trade MIEWE 5 R R KR EE R
receivables and contract assets MERNEE 621 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEHEFE 156 36
Operating cash flows before movements in =~ @& ¢ E AL LR RE
working capital 30,029 49,856
Decrease (increase) in trade and other FE W B 55 B R % B A JE W SR IE
receivables A (3E ) 141 (23,178)
(Increase) decrease in contract assets/ BREE/BRBFEGEM) R
liabilities, net (32,073) 1,623
Increase (decrease) in trade and other FE 1B 5 BR 3R N HL b FE A SRIE 3 A0
payables CRd) 27,034 (1,841)
Cash from operations KEEES 25,131 26,360
Income tax paid BEATSEL (8,387) (7,364)
Net cash from operating activities RETEFIBREEEHE 16,744 18,996
Investing activities RETE
Withdrawal of time deposit IR HUE Bi 77 3K 7,371 7,000
Repayment from a related company —HEBEEAFER 213 =
Interest income received 2 HFH B A 174 123
Repayment from a director —HBEBEZEN 14 11
Proceed from disposal of property, HEYWE  BERXEDN
plant and equipment Fr 5 08 2 =
Placement of time deposit 5 HUE 817 3% (7,055) (7,371)
Placement of pledged bank deposits GFHEEFIRITFR (5,089) (6,480)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE ¥1% - BB M & & (310) (14,621)
Advance to a director M—BEERK (18) (10)
Advance to immediate holding company DIEEE3 Y NI = - (103)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTARSRE (4,698) (21,451)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—EB-hE —ZT—N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TP T
Financing activities R & EE
Advance from a director —RBEEIRFN 957 360
Deferred issue costs paid BAEEZEITR A (3,664) -
Repurchase of shares i 17 B[] - (13,925)
Repayment to a director M—HBEFEXN (950) (386)
Repayment of interest on lease liabilities EEHEEERNL (156) (36)
Repayment of principal on lease liabilities EEHEAERS (1,468) (1,379)
Repayment to related companies BIEZEENETb 5N (164) (296)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFTARSREE (5,445) (15,658)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and HERASEZEWIEMGEL) REE
cash equivalents 6,601 (18,113)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F£#IRERIRLEEY
of the year 26,951 45,064
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREERHALZEY -
of the year,

representing bank balances and cash BIRIT &R RIRE 33,552 26,951



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

SEM Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands on 6 November 2015 and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 14 February 2020 (the “Listing”).
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report. The immediate holding
company of the Company is SEM Enterprises Limited (“SEM
Enterprises”), which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI").

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Macau
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) has consistently
applied all the new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
that are effective for the accounting period beginning on 1
January 2019 for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019.

1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuec)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Insurance Contracts?
Definition of a Business®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!
Definition of Material*

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

8 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020.

Except as stated below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in the foreseeable future.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuec)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards

The New Framework:
o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and
a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the
definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;

o discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

e  states that the primary measure of financial performance
is profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances
other comprehensive income will be used and only for
income or expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

e  discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Conseqguential amendments have been made so that references
in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework,
whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous versions
of the framework. These amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier
application permitted. Other than specific standards which still
refer to the previous versions of the framework, the Group will
rely on the New Framework on its effective date in determining
the accounting policies especially for transactions, events or
conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting
standards.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if the market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements are determined on such basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Lease”, and
measurement that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follow:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset and liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)
Basis of consolidation (Continueq)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a services of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is described in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

Revenue from electrical and mechanical engineering services
is recognised over time during the course of construction by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction at
the end of the reporting period. Progress towards complete
satisfaction is measured on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation (i.e. contract
costs incurred for work performed to date) relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation (i.e. total estimated contract cost), that best depict the
Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or services.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using either (a) the expected value
method or (b) the most likely amount, depending on which
method better predicts the amount of consideration contract
only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an inclusion
will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and
the changes in circumstances during year.

The contract assets on construction contracts represent the
Group’s right to consideration for work completed and not billed
as the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance
in satisfying the respective performance obligations. The
contract liabilities on construction contracts represent the
Group’s obligation to transfer electrical and mechanical
engineering services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration from the customers.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continuea)

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the
time value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties of the contract.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does not have a
significant financing component in circumstances where
payment in advance or in arrear are in accordance with the
typical payment terms of the relevant industry, which has a
primary purpose other than financing.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commmencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Leases (Continueq)

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Leases (Continueq)

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Leases (Continueq)

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporates assets are allocated to individual cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The Group assesses whether there is indication that corporate
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, and
right-of-use assets (Continuead)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group
of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, contract assets,
deposits, other receivables, amounts due from a director,
immediate holding company and a related company, pledged
bank deposits, time deposit and bank balances). The amount of
ECL is updated at the reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors based on internal credit rating and
credit loss rate, if applicable, the Group’s historical credit
loss experience adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money, where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e  gignificant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEFHBER

(Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued) ot M =NE
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit BEAR LM - WEBLTEEEAR
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly REBHAEEREEERR - BIAE
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined l BREEHILENGEERR BV ZFﬁE
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increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHR»
(Continueq)
Financial instruments (Continued) ot M =NE

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty: or

e information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBER %

(Continueq)

EMTIHE®

Financial instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice when
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBER %

(Continueq)

EMTIHE®

Financial instruments (Continued)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Debt and equity instruments that are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instruments.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and amounts due to a director and related companies are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business consolidation) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)
Taxation (Continuea)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in a subsidiary, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investment are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)
Taxation (Continuea)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary difference arising from
subsequent revisions to the carrying amounts of the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities resulting from remeasurement of the
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
the initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in term of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, as recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueq)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong and the Social Security Fund
Contribution in Macau are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Electrical and mechanical engineering contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total contract
costs and margins to complete the satisfaction of these services
and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by the management
of the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time
provided by the subcontractors or suppliers involved and the
experience of the management of the Group. In order to keep
the budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the
Group conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts
by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts
incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact on the
margins recognised in each period.

Recognised amounts of revenue and margins from electrical
and mechanical engineering services reflect the management’s
best estimate of each contract’s outcome and stage of
completion, which are determined on the basis of a number
of estimates. This includes the assessment of the margins of
on-going electrical and mechanical engineering contracts. For
more complex contracts in particular, costs to complete and
margins are subject to significant estimation uncertainty, the
actual outcomes in terms of total cost may be higher or lower
than estimated at the end of each reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and margins recognised in future years and
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

4.

BT THBAEENEERIR 2

EIRBHEIESL
BEERNRETT  AREEERET AR

B AR K B BA T = % ETE B IR &
B RARBNBRENAEEEEERE
Frr ks ermkfREE T RIE‘RORE
IRAEEERENERARE - RERE
ERHFHEE  AREEEEEBLRE
EeRHRERFEACRESNRERD
EHEEH - ZEX GRS MR A EHEE

RENEZE -

KEBNLREMIERBHCERRES
BERBNRREEEHSEANBERRTK
B B RAEMAET - WL D ERE TRFEE -
EERRAMETHTNEIRBMRIESLD
AN - BRIHBEMNAOME @ 7
AR EKBT G N RBREAMGTT
ABIRE B AZEWERATESRIEIE
RERERRIER 2 b MR EREK
FRERNKDRBFNARTESLES
LT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received and
receivable from the provision of electrical and mechanical
engineering services by the Group to external customers which
is recognised over time as the Group’s contract work enhances
an asset that the external customers control as the Group
performed. The Group’s revenue is derived from provision of
electrical and mechanical engineering services in Macau during
the year.

5. Uz
Wt iE AR ERSMNEEFIRHEE D REM T
RRBERMEYHANRFE - BARA
SENEHN T REERRERINAEEELD
FIEFINEE PR HIMEE - AEEA KR
KERFRERFIRHEE N MR TIZRE -

Provision of electrical and mechanical TR E ) R T 12 R 7%

engineering services
The customers of the Group are mainly main contractors and
subcontractors in Macau. Contracts with the Group’s customers

are mainly fixed-price contracts, except for the variation orders.

Disaggregation of revenue

By property type BRYMERRE S
Hotels and casino BT K IR S 55
Commercial properties EEYE
Residential properties FEMHE

Others HAfb

2019 2018
—F-NF —TN\F
MOP’000 MOP'000
FHRMT TR
203,087 185,229

AEENEFEEZRRBRMAMNBERE KD
BE - BAKEEFNANEIERETEER
MEH  ETREE BRI -

k225 38
2019 2018
—F-NF —T-N\F
MOP’000 MOP'000
FHRMT TR
158,043 89,960
30,289 89,727
12,272 4,350
2,483 1,192

203,087 185,229
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

5. REVENUE (continueq) 5. Wzk=
Transaction price allocated to the remaining EEAHNETIREZERTEHAEENR
performance obligations for contracts with ZE®
customers
The transaction price in respect of provision of electrical and RERERREBIREESEZRTREAE
mechanical engineering services allocated to the remaining £ OCREKSE D ZER) E ) REMR T2
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) RFEHR S E R ERR AR TERIRFFRAT

at the end of the reporting period and the expected timing of
recognising revenue are as follows:

2019 2018

—2-hE —ZE-N\F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TR T

Within one year R—FNK 156,242 53,409
More than one year but not more than —F A BB M F

two years 73,731 —

229,973 53,409
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment focusing on
the provision of electrical and mechanical engineering services.
This operating segment has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports that are regularly reviewed by the
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers, for the purpose of result allocation and performance
assessment. Therefore, no further analysis of segment
information is presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue is all derived from operation in Macau and
the Group’s non-current assets are all located in Macau.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group during the year are as follows:

6.

2EMEH

AEBRFEE-—RKLE0H BENEHRED
KR TR - NEENBRBARE
BHREET 2BSAARRES (X8
BERRE)EHRE UHEEIERRK
Bt - Bt - THREJHDMERNE—
BT o

wWEEH
AEEKEEEREERMANEE  AX
SENIERBEEDLIRFT
ERXEXFNESN

KEEAREREZI0% A EHEFPRE
AR RN T

2019 2018

—F-NF —E-N\F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRFMT TR T

Customer A ZEA 98,122 65,744
Customer B =FB 46,120 47,264
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7.

OTHER INCOME 7. Hilg A
2019 2018
—E2-NEF —T)N\&F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FBMT TBMIT
Interest income B A 174 123
Others Hih 2 _
176 123

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 8. MEEE
2019 2018
—®-NF —T-NF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TR T

Impairment losses recognised on: BRI E IR RE R
VEREY SR

— trade receivables —EUNE AR 485 -
— contract assets —EHEE 136 -
621 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BR#FAETEF
2019 2018
—E2-NEF —E-N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT FBFT
Profit before taxation has been arrived at BB AR R E R R N5 & IEE
after charging: EE
Director’s remuneration (note 70) E=®e (AL 10) 2,218 1,707
Other staff costs Hih 8 TRA
— salaries and other allowance —Fre R E AR, 4,801 3,169
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIREFF B 5k 121 50
Total staff costs BT ZA4%8 7,140 4,926
Less: staff costs included in cost of services & © 5T ABRFEAK A8 B T Ak 2 (919) (1,014)
6,221 3,912
Auditor’s remuneration % BT BN 1,135 13
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERERETE
equipment 2,136 1,530
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BEEREZEE
equipment 3 -
Listing expenses (Note) EmRx (Ki) 17,150 1,740
Note:  Included in listing expenses for the year ended 31 December Kt sFABEZZE—N\F+_A=+—A8H1
2018 was professional fees of MOP917,000, which were FEM MRS AEEE R 917,00052F9
incurred in relation to a previous potential listing exercise that T AN ERBE EMEEM

was expensed. EXE -
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.EE - FETHAEREEMNS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERTETHAEMS
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors RER AMARFEEREZITHA
and chief executive of the Company (including emoluments BEENENNME (BERKAEERA
for services as director/employee of the group entities prior RIBESREAEBERES EEW
to becoming the directors of the Company) during the year PRI E) FIBT -

are as follows:

Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme

Fees allowance payments contributions Total
FEeR RENHEE RIKER

e Hii2l MREXG TR ok

MOP'000  MOP’000  MOP'000  MOP’000  MOP000
TRMAT  FRAMAx  FRAZ TRz TRAR

Year ended HE-E-NE
31 December 2019 +=HA=+—H
LEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Woo Chu Fai (Note j) MRS (F7721) - 770 309 19 1,098
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FEREE - 554 - 19 573
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan AEBLE - 528 - 19 547
Non-executive directors HHTEE
Mr. Wan Man Keung FREAE - - - - -

Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis ~ BFE5R KA - - - - -

Total emoluments e mzs - 1,852 309 57 2,218

Annual Report F[Z & 2019 127



128

SEM Holdings Limited SBiZ#E ¢ AR A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continueq)

(a) Directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments

(&)

10.E5 - FETHRAEBRESHE

() EERTETHAEME @)

(Continueq)
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme
Fees allowance payments  contributions Total
Hek HEENRSR RINTEF
e Himzl  HOREIA e k)
MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP'000
FRMAT TRMT TRMT TRMT TR
Year ended HE-E-N\&
31 December 2018 +=HA=+—H
LEE
Executive directors HITEF
Mr. Woo Chu Fai BB AE - 511 - 17 528
Mr. Wun Chi Wai FHELE - 228 - 8 236
Mr. Yu Chi Kwan (Note fy) S E R AE (i) - 505 - 19 524
Mr. Wong Man Wai Thomas BENREE (Hiitv)
(Note v) - 401 - 18 419
Non-executive directors IHTEE
Mr. Wan Man Keung FRBEE - - - - -
Mrs. Kan Wan Wai Yee Mavis ~ B§FZ57 KA - - - = =
Total emoluments ¢ @5 = 1,645 - 62 1,707
Notes: Bt -

(i)

(V)

Mr. Woo Chu Fai acts as the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group.

The performance related incentive payments are determined
based on the performance of the individual and the Group’s
performance and profitability.

Mr. Yu Chi Kwan was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 1 August 2018.

Mr. Wong Man Wai, Thomas resigned as an executive
director of the Company on 1 August 2018.

M

(i)

(i)

HEBEEEEEARARREIETERAER
A EaMe e REERSERT
BA BT RREIRS NS

NEARTEEME IR EFEEAE
B =B ARt R MAEL

B2 48 S8UAR R ) 2R D S Y DR IR (LA R
ARANEERRRAMENETE -

MEERER _ZE-N\FNA—BHE

RERARRRTESE °

BEXEBEER_T—-NFNAA—BE
EARARRTES -
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.EE - FETHAEREEMNS

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continueq) (#)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME

The five highest paid individuals include three (2018: three)
directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019, details of whose emoluments are included above.
Details of the emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individuals were as follows:

REE-F-AF+-A=+—AL
FF - REBRBFMALRE=R (S
F-N\FZR)ARAEE KREH
SHERREX - BTRBFMAL
SLUESURE

2019 2018
—F-NF —T-)N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR T

Employees ==
— salaries and other allowance — ¥ & K EAth)EAh 930 684
— performance related incentive payments — 245 R AH 78 £ 22 8h = 1~ 258 -
— retirement benefit scheme contributions  — 3R /K18 K 51 &Il 7% 37 15
1,225 699

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were within
the following bands:

FEENM RN IATEE :

2019 2018

—F-NF —T-N\F

Number of Number of

employees employees

EEAH BB A

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 2 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company nor the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during both years.

AEEHERAARBAEERNRRRD
FMAL (BREZRER) XfNEM
B < 1F 43 0 AN 68 T 30 A0 A 1R Y 2R
B ERMBME BMEAQRES
R EFERELREREERMME
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

11. TAXATION
Macau Complementary Tax SR PI FERR
Current tax BVHAT 18
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBEEE

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2018: 12%) of
the estimated assessable profits exceeding MOP600,000 for the
year.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the year. No provision for
Hong Kong Profit Tax was made in the consolidated financial
statements for both years as the subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong have no assessable profits for both years.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

11. i I8

2019 2018
—F-NF —T)N\F
MOP’000 MOP'000
FHRMT TRFT
7,020 6,948

- (21)

7,020 6,927

RE R B PIH 78 B 1R B 18 600,000 2 P
TTE R ERBUR R 12% (Z T — N\ F
12%) 5t & ©

BRMBHIRAFE 2 (7T R % A
BB E16.6% (ZF—\F : 16.5%) 5 & °
RN E R EE M B QAR EFE S
BRRTUEN - A EBRERA M BHRERIED
BAENGHEE -

ERAEa At EERERTFANN

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and THERR R AR M A SR T -
other comprehensive income as follows:
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-)N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRt TBRFIIT
Profit before taxation B B4 Bl i A 27,287 48,413
Tax at Macau Complementary Tax rate LR EA2% T E K
of 12% (2018: 12%) MIBE(ZT—\F : 12%) 3,274 5,810
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A HHAT R GETE
tax purpose 3,818 1,210
Overprovision in prior years BEFE BB - (21)
Special complementary tax incentive Rl R ER (72) (72)
Taxation for the year FATIE 7,020 6,927

12. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2018: nil).

12. Ig 8B

REE-ZT-—NF+_A=+—HLFE"
I M8 (R AR A B B A RUR AN SR AS,
B S BARURAED RN ERRE (2
T\ §&) o



For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BIREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the RARBEBEARFRNEGEGSRERNEF T
owners of the Company for the year is based on the following LA TEREE -
data:
2019 2018
—E-NFE —T-)N\&
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFT FIRFIT
Earnings Z%
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ FILAGt E B EARE A H AR 7]
the Company for the purpose of B AEEFERRF
basic earnings per share 20,267 41,486
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Number of Number of
shares shares
v (4= sk d=
’000 ’000
T iz F i
Weighted average number of shares B 1% hn#E T 19 21
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FA 75T & S AR E A F| 79 I 58 I%
for the purpose of basic earnings per share  Jl#E F 159 £L 1,500,000 1,660,731
The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of AR E IR EARZE T H IR D hikE g8 &
calculating basis earnings per share has been determined on REBERNATBHA-—_TE-_ZTF—A=+—
the assumption that the capitalisation issue as described in HRBIRER ((BIRER]) (RN | —& P
the section headed “Share Capital” in the prospectus of the MABERNMEBETER_E—\F—A—HB4&
Company dated 31 January 2020 (the “Prospectus”) have been WMEBTE - ARETEEIREARZ R & RE 5 0
effective on 1 January 2018. The weighted average number of BEHHEFER-_E—N\E+=_A+Ah
shares for calculating basic earning per share was taken into HAZp & E o
account of share repurchase as at 19 December 2018.
No diluted earnings per share for both years was presented AAREFEANDEZEDBITE @R - W
as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue during both 25| SRR SE R T -

years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W% - BERRE
Owned Leased Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
property properties improvements  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
BENE HENE HENEEE RAREE  BOER RE g

MOPOO0  MOPO00  MOPOO0  MOP'O00  MOPOO0  MOP'O00  MOP000
THfin THfin THfin THfn THfin THfin THfn

COST RA
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H = 3,165 = 120 578 5 3918
Adations HE 14,006 1,245 252 = 44 320 15,866

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E

+-A=1-H 14,005 4410 252 120 622 375 19,784
Additions NE - 2,122 183 - 127 - 2,432
Disposals & - - - - - (55) (55)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE

+-A=t-H 14,005 6,532 435 120 749 320 22,161
DEPRECIATION ik
A1 January 2018 RZZ-\F-A—-R - 2355 - 113 379 3 2880
Provided for the year Enft %3 1264 17 2 79 75 1530

At 31 Decernber 2018 RZE-N\E

+-A=t-HR 9 3,619 17 115 458 108 4,410
Provided for the year FREE 280 1,567 129 2 8 10 2136
Eiminated on disposals i E R - - - - - (50) (%0)

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+Zh=1-H 373 5,186 146 17 546 128 6,496

CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NE
+zA=+-A 13,632 1,346 29 3 203 192 15,665

At 31 Decernber 2018 RZE-\%
S e ! 13,912 791 235 5 164 267 15,374




For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BEN®&E @
(Continueq)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lt - BERZERNIE B RAB&AR
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per AT ERTE :
annum:
Owned property 2% ERSE/ES 2%
Leased properties Over the lease term HEWHE HHEFH
Leasehold improvements 33% HEVEEE 33%
Furniture and fixtures 20% R REE 20%
Office equipment 20% ENE L 20%
Motor vehicles 20% & 20%
The Group as lessee AEBEHEEA
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and EREEE GIAYE  BEKREE)
equipment)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR 7T

Expense relating to short-term leases with B2 HAR 1218 A (R4 R A0 %2 5f

lease terms end within 12 months HEBHENRAX 341 248
Total cash outflow for leases MERSMNERE 1,965 1,659
For both years, the Group leases various offices and RREFE  A&EAELEHELAPEN
warehouses for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into EREE -HEANF L1 E2FHEE H
for fixed terms of 1 to 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated on R o M EATHTE (E R ERE Eines - B &sE
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms S [E] B IR B (6 o IS E 78 B R BT Ad S AT
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing THEIEMERE AEEFEASHNESR

the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the WA T A A HBITE LR HIR -

definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for AEEEHITVERMERE - RN
properties. As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of short-term F+ZA=+—H EHHESHASHE XA
lease is similar to the portfolio of short-term lease to which the FEANEHEAERIMEREEEEEE -

short-term lease expense disclosed as above.
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. FEUR B 5 BR 7N HL {th FE U FRIE
2019 2018
=F-NF —B-N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT FBFT
Trade receivables JEUE 5 R 40,308 36,655
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (485) =
39,823 36,655
Deposit for a construction contract BEANES 535 4,800
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMRIE 469 484
Deferred issue costs BT A 5,497 554
Other receivables H th & W R IE 600 114
46,924 42,607
The Group usually allows a credit period of 30 to 60 days AEEREZEFRLEABEZ60HME
to its customers. The following is an aging analysis of trade B - RNEHEHAR BRESFER FIK
receivables net of allowance for credit losses based on the EEEERE) BRI NIZREEZEREZY
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period are as follows: R
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)\EF
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFT TBMT
Within 30 days 30 B 18,016 18,691
31 to 60 days 31 £ 60H 14,748 9,241
61 to 90 days 61290 H 2,838 5,105
Over 90 days BB 90 H 4,221 3,618
39,823 36,655
As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts with RZZFE—NF—A—H REXFELNE

customers amounted to MOP9,640,000. W EZ 5B 3 459,640,000 89 7t ©



For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-F

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continueq)

Included in the trade receivables are debtors with a carrying
amount of MOP27,399,000 (2018: MOP12,597,000) at 31
December 2019, which are past due but not impaired. Out of
the past due balances, MOP420,000 (2018: MOP1,939,000)
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as
in default at 31 December 2019, because there is no significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances or charge any interest thereon.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL on
all trade receivables. To measure the ECL of trade receivables,
trade receivables have been assessed individually.

The following is an aging analysis of the trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired:

Past due: 80 B
Within 30 days 30BN
31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290 H
Over 90 days #8590 H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired are from
customers with good credit quality with reference to respective
settlement history and forward-looking information and the
Group considers any change in the expected life of the trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

Details of impairment assessment on trade receivables and
deposits are set out in note 26.

—NEFZA=t—HLFE
15. B E 5 IR

H{EYRHIE »)
ﬁé:;fﬂ¢+:ﬁjz+f H:EKE
SEFRORECBRBHBEBRRENERES
27,399,000/8 P37t (=& — A\ : 12,597,000
SEPITT) o IR ERAE SRR + 420,000 97T (=
T — )\ £ : 1,939,00038 9 jT) & # #90 K
FUNERR=ZE—NF+=ZRA=+—HF
WRAEY REAAEEEZWEEANEH
FzESBINWR AR IRE o A5 @B &5
ZE SR E R R R B B 45 B 1
?ﬁﬁuu ©

AEBRABEGITELABERKE S BN
FHEEHEEER - Rt ERKEZRFN
BHEEEE BREZERRC EFTE -

REBHERBRENEKRE S RXN KRR
DT

2019 2018
—E-n%F - NF
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMAZ  FRPR
20,975 3,882
5,563 5,097

441 1,679

420 1,939

27,399 12,5697

REXEMHMEL 2 AEESFAE

EFNEEERYBEEEFPNEERE -
EERUEEZREANAKEER  AREE
EEEFPHNEREZAGERVELAY
EEZRERRNETAED - AEEEHE
ABENEKREZERAFSRBEEE
ERENEF  X2EKANEEESE KA
EHEER  AARERSHERRE BREK
BHRRNIEMFRES) -

EHRRERESEZ NI RETEFS
M FE26 o

Annual Report F[Z & 2019 135



136

SEM Holdings Limited #8325 R A A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

16.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Contract assets EHEE

Provision of electrical and mechanical
engineering services

Contract liabilities AHEE

Provision of electrical and mechanical

engineering services

As at 1 January 2018, contract assets and contract liabilities
amounted to MOP39,453,000 and MOP1,505,000, respectively.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on quantity surveyors’ or customers’
inspection. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period with
reference to surveys of work performed to date. The Group
typically transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

The Group also typically agrees to a defect liability period of 1
year from the date of the practical completion of the construction
for 5% to 10% of the contract sum. This amount of retention
money is included in contract assets until the end of the defect
liability period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on completion of defect liability period. The defect
liability period serves as an assurance that the construction
services performed comply with agreed-upon specifications and
such assurance cannot be purchased separately. The Group
classifies these contract assets as current because the Group
expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

16. BNEERGHNER

RHE T R T2 AR5

RHE S MW T2 R

2019 2018
—B-7E —T-)\#F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRFIT TR
68,425 50,964

63 14,539

—ET-)N\EFE—H—H AHNBENEYHE
& 9 7l 539,453,000 P9 7t & 1,505,000 8
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B TR WERERENBRE - AR HERER
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16. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continuea)

Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and recoverable at
the end of the defect liability period of 1 year from the date of
the completion of respective projects.

The following is an aging analysis of retention money which is to
be settled, based on the expiry of defect liability period, at the
end of the reporting period.

Within one year R—FR

The amount of receipt in advance from a customer is netted
off against retention money on a particular contract basis and
presented as contract liabilities. For the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period, MOP14,539,000 (2018:
MOP1,505,000) recognised as revenue in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The significant increase of contract assets as at 31 December
2019 is the result of the increase in completion of certain
significant contracts work of electrical and mechanical
engineering services.

The significant decrease of contract liabilities as at 31 December
2019 is the result of the recognition of revenue in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for
the contract assets. The loss allowance provision of the contract
assets as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were insignificant.

Details of impairment assessment on contract assets are set out
in note 26.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. BHNEEREGHERE»

FEENREEEH(BSRBATK ZHRE
AHE) BREAEEN - 28 RATKE -

UTRREENREDT  BREREHR
REREEEHEAMEH -

2019 2018
—-AE -—T-N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRAT TR
20,442 17,659

B EFRIBIREEANEENBRRB ST
B AAGHEE BRBREHRNENERE
ms  BE_E—NLFF+_A=+—HLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

17. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES  17. FEURERE S FIE

Amount due from a director B —REERIE
Details of amount due from a director were stated as follows: JEW— R EEFIBFBHIIOT ¢

Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year ended
31 December
BE+=-RA=+—~H
LtFEENESREEEHE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AFE -—T-\F =B-AE -—T-NF
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR TRFT TR

Mr. Wan Man Keung FREAEE 1,016 1,012 1,016 1,023
The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and ZHIBRIIEEZ L BER £ B RAR
repayable on demand. ZREE -

Amount due from immediate holding company EWEEZERABRE
The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and ZHBERIIEEZ L EER B NRAR

repayable on demand. BREE o



For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

17.

18.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

(Continueq)
Amount due from a related company

Details of amount due from a related company were stated as
follows:

17. BEUREAE S FRIE ()

FE U — E B 2 2 B IE
fEM —RIBE R R FRFBH#IIAT

Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year ended
31 December
BEZ+=-RA=+—~H
LEENERRESELE

2019 2018 2019 2018
=F-NF —T-NF Z=FB-AF —T-N\F
MOP’000 MOP'000 ~ MOP000  MOP000
FAEMT  Tarx  FRMT TRfE

Ready Engineering Limited &= T2 AR A A
(Note) (Ha)

Note: ~ The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Mr. Wan Man Keung, a director of the
Company, is the controlling shareholder of this company.

Details of impairment assessment on amounts due from related
parties are set out in note 26.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/TIME
DEPOSIT/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2019 are pledged
to secure the performance bonds granted to the Group, which
carry interest at prevailing market rate ranged from 0.2% to
0.47% (2018: 0.2% to 0.47%) per annum.

Time deposit represents a bank deposit with original maturity
date of over three months and the balance as at 31 December
2019 carried a fixed interest rate of 0.41% (2018: 0.41%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2019, bank balances and cash comprise of
cash held and short term bank deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less which carry interest at prevailing market
rate ranged from 0.01% to 0.34% (2018: 0.01% to 0.34%) per
annum.

Details of impairment assessment on pledged bank deposits,
time deposit and bank balances and cash are set out in note 26.

- P13 213 213

Wit : ZFARFEZUE EER 28R
BREKEERE ARAEEFFRBESE
AR AR -

BRI E T KA R ETEFBER
Bif5E 26 °

18. BIRIRRITHER EHER R
THEBRRRS
R-ZE—-hE+-_A=+—BHDEMHE
THEREEEFRUERNEBRERNEDR
RIEER  BRITMBHENTEF02%
2047% (ZF—)\F:02% £0.47%) T2 °

EHERERIFABB=EANETHE
FER—_ZE-hE+-_A=1+—BEFK
BEEFMZE041% (ZZF— \F : 0.41%) 5T &
K485 o

N-ZEBE-AFE+-A=+—8 RITEHR
BEBFEIREEAA=EAKATHEA
BIEe REHRTER  BRITMBEANEE
FENF0.01%ZE0.34% (ZZF—/)\F : 0.01%
Z£0.34%) 5t 8 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19. B E Z R R E Mt EA RKE

2019 2018
—2-hE —T-)N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR T
Trade payables BB SRR 34,060 13,274
Retention payables ERHRE 3,863 3,200
Accrued expenses X 2,425 753
Accrued issue costs FEETBEITRLAR 1,279 =
Accrued listing expenses FERT EmRE 3,837 -
Other payables B IR 250 174
45,714 17,401
Included in the Group’s trade payables was a related company AEBWENESERBREFERTIN S
with aggregate carrying amount of MOP36,000 at 31 December —N\F+=ZA=+—HAKKME#{ES36,000
2018 (2019: nil). Mr. Wan Man Keung, a director of the BT (ZE—NE &) - ARAIESEFR
Company, was the controlling shareholder of this company. SR BN RIMIEIRARER o
The credit period of trade payables is ranging from 30 to 90 ENESERFNEEHNF0E0H - B
days. The following is an aging analysis of the trade payables FWEAR - EHESERRERR DT IR
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: ZEHEENNMT :
2019 2018
—F-hF —T-N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TiRMT TR
Within 30 days 30 B 27,900 9,083
31 to 60 days 31 E60H 1,009 2,611
61 to 90 days 61290 H 5,058 1,394
Over 90 days @90 H 93 186
34,060 13,274




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

20. LEASE LIABILITIES 20. fHEAE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TR
Lease liabilities payable: EBHHEEEE:
Within one year R—FNK 1,101 672
Within a period of more than one year R—F A EETBARE T
but not more than two years HIM W 225 =
1,326 672
Less: Amount due for settlement with B IMERBEEZ RN+ =@ A
12 months shown under current ANE B E 2 508
liabilities (1,101) 672)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  FI{EZEREBN B E 2 AT @B 1%
under non-current liabilities BIHAEE 2 R 225 -
Lease obligations that are denominated in currency other than N EBEERINEE KNI B E
the functional currency of the relevant group entity is set out MEEEEIHNRTX :
below:
Hong Kong
Dollars
BT
MOP’000
TR T

As at 31 December 2019 R-—ZE—hhF+=-_A=+—8H 343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

21. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
Amount due to a director

Details of amount due to a director were stated as follows:

21. BE{JREEF FIE
Rt —BEERIE
BN — GBS REEERIMT -

2019 2018
—F-hF —T)N\F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TR T

Mr. Woo Chu Fai HAMERR S 367 360

The amount is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Amounts due to related companies

Details of amounts due to related companies were stated as

ZREAFEESHEE ERF REREAER
ZREE -

B EAE R TIFRIA
FERTRE R R BFIBEINOT

follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\E
MOP’000 MOP’000
TiRMT TR

Ready Electrical Metal Work Limited (Nots) 2 EBRSERFZAR AR
(Bt&7) - 124
Ready Enterprises (China) Limited (Note) ZEEBEX (PR BRAT (M) - 40
- 164

Note: ~ The amounts were non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. Mr. Wan Man Keung, a
director of the Company, is the controlling shareholder of these
companies.

i ZEFRERFEESUE EBEM 28
REREREER -ARAEETFRRBE
ERZE R B ERARR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E —Z—WFE+_-_A=+—HIFE
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22 g AR
Number of Share
shares capital
i3 H fg A
MOP’000
FHRMT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HREEO B T E B
Authorised: ERE -
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and RN=ZZE—N\E—H—H -
31 December 2019 —N\F+=ZA=+—H
—h&E+=A=+—H 5,000,000,000 51,500
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE :
At 1 January 2018 R-—Z—N\F—H—H 50,000,000 516
Repurchase of shares iz 0 & B (5,000,000) (52)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE—NF+ZHA=+—8
31 December 2019 ;rZE-NFF+ZA=+—H 45,000,000 464
On 19 December 2018, the Company repurchased 3,250,000 R-ZE—NE+=-B+NHB  A2FDBIA

and 1,750,000 shares of the Company from those independent
third parties at cash consideration of HK$8,775,000 (equivalent
to MOP9,051,000) and HK$4,725,000 (equivalent to

MOP4,874,000), respectively.

/& K 88,775,000 7t (18 & 1 9,051,000
SEPITT) & 4,725,000 7T (FHE 7 4,874,000
SRPITT) B 25BN 58 = 5 B0 3,250,000 %
1,750,000 & AN A Bl g 15 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

23.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Eligible employees of the Group are covered by a government-
mandated defined contribution plan managed by the Macau
Government, namely Social Security Fund Contribution,
pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit would be
determined and paid to the Macau Government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees and employers by paying
a fixed amount on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund
Contribution. The Group funds the entire contribution and has
no further commitments beyond its monthly contributions.

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs for each employee
to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 for the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the schemes
prior to their interests in the Group’s contributions becoming
fully vested and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in future years.

23. RIKEFIGHE

AEBNESEREEE2RAEMRNTER
BB 58 ) 1 E B KT 8 (At e RER
SEHR) B RPIBRFBEE RN E
BURKER - R —RABEE REEHERE
- BEREXTEASARLERERESHK
XNEEREA - AEESBRERKERES
PR AN WEEMASE -

AEBREFERWEABEFT RN AE
BAERANEERIBESHE - BRESF
EMEELERB YR EAEHNESE A
AEBMEEDAFA - ARERBREDAE
tEHE 2 EBHBEFH SR A% HR - H
iR & T 8l M= A AH R A £ IR 430,000
BT R AEERY -

REREHR - HEFESRANEE R
RaXHBEBEAE LS MAESE B AN
HORR AR K BUF AN R B R 2R R



For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
the following related party transactions:

24,

BAELT X%
BEAMBEREEMESREOR S RE
Boh KEEFTIATEEN RS :

Purchase of materials from Shun Tat M&E BB EKTREERATEE

Equipment Limited (Note) M (AT EE)

Note:  Mr. Wan Man Keung, a director of the Company, has significant
influence over this company.

Compensation of key management personnel

Compensation of key management personnel represents the
remuneration of the directors of the Company during both years,
which is disclosed in note 10.

25. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes lease liabilities and amounts due to a director and
related companies as disclosed in notes 20 and 21, respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity, comprising share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends and issue of
new shares and debts.

25.

2019 2018
—F-AF —E-N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT TRMTT

- 501

Bt ARFAEEFREREEHKANEEX
Z- Pk

FREBRAEME

TEEBABMEREARAESTAMES
EEVEBN - WERMFIRE10 ©

BEAXERER

AEBEBHER  URRTEEGEES
SERE  ANERELCETRER ZHEN
FERBREREADS - REF  AEH

R BRE TR .

AEENEARBREERFE  2ENE
20RADPMBENHEESEARER—
FEERBAEARZE(NBRREEESS
BEY) Rigm (BRERAREE) -

ARRBEFEBERERTELARE - 1R
ZERSH—#D  RRAREFEBEARK
ARBZBERHEBORAR - REARAE
ENHEBER  AREREB RS KB
TR ER FEEEEEARRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. €M TH
Categories of financial instruments SMIASE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TFiRMT FBFIT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BHEN AT ENCREE 117,664 106,970
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Amortised cost B SRR 43,656 17,172
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREMEEERERBE
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade AEENFZcRTEABREREKESER
receivables, deposits, other receivables, amounts due from a e BEMEWHIE - BR—REE 5
director, immediate holding company and a related company, RS A B K B A Rk IE ~ BIRIRERITER
pledged bank deposits, time deposit, bank balances and cash, EHER - ROOEHR KBRS  ENEZERX
trade and other payables and amounts due to a director and LEMEMNREAREN —BEEREE
related companies. Details of these financial instruments are NRIFIE - ZEFeM I ENFEC R EEMN
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these R HZzEem T AERARER R
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these BEZFRBAOBESHN T - AEEER
risks are set out below. Management of the Group manages and BENRERZERE - R KRE S
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are HMITEE R -

implemented on a timely and effective manner.



For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-F

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
(representing pledged bank deposits) denominated in currencies
other than the respective group entities’ functional currencies at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

HK$ against MOP BTTHBRFTT
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency exposure. However,
management monitors the related foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant currency exposure
should the need arise.

As the exchange rate of HK$/MOP is relatively stable, the Group
does not expect any significant foreign currency exposure
arising from the fluctuation of the HK$/MOP exchange rates.
As a result, the management of the Group considers that the
sensitivity of the Group’s exposure towards the change in foreign
exchange rates between HK$/MOP is minimal.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank deposits and bank balances. The Group
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate lease liabilities. The Group currently does not enter into any
hedging instrument for cash flow interest rate risk.

The management of the Group considers that the overall interest
rate risk is not significant and no sensitivity analysis is presented.

—NF+-_A=+—HILEE
26. &M T R »

eREMEEBRERER #)

RBEEHR AKENEHEE B ER
RITHFEF) RRENSEBEERNIIEER
MOMNOEEEEHET ¢

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—)\f
MOP’000 MOP’000
FiRM T TR
16,016 15,962

K%liﬁﬂflﬁﬁ?ﬂ?\”ﬁgﬂ 2 Y SN e
KK - AW - EEEYEEREINE R R
H%Eé?%gﬂ%%ﬁé%ﬂ‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%’iﬁ%@ﬁﬁ g

HARBITL B TTHNERBYHEE  A&H
TEHA = B S o W8 P T A0 [ 2O B 2
EFAEANERE - Bt - AEBEEE
A NGBS T BRI T 2 R
RO [\ s B5URR B A o

ANEREE )Y BIRIT R R IRITAE R
miﬁi/}\hgﬁjtﬂ o REE JNHEER A E
BEHEABNATERNERR - A&E B AT
WERR S REF ERRRETLEMEF T -

AEEEEERAERBMNERERITTERX
B EZ3SREDHT °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has delegated its
finance team to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk
grading to categorised exposures according to their degree of
risk of default. The finance team uses publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own historical repayment records
to rate its major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure
and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded
spreads amongst counterparties.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk at 31
December 2019 on trade receivables from the Group’s top
five major customers and the largest customers amounting to
MOP30,919,000 and MOP12,743,000 (2018: MOP35,175,000
and MOP19,125,000), and accounted for 77.6% and 32.0%
(2018: 96.0% and 52.2%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables are assessed
individually for impairment assessment based on the Group’s
internal credit rating, historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate. In this regard, the
directors of the Company considered that the credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets is significantly reduced at
the end of the reporting period.

26. &M T R »

eREMEEBRERER #)

EERBREHFHERANETERELE
EMBERNER REREHR  AKE
FESESEERRSERASERE T
AEBTEEMEEMBER - BREARRT
KECREEMBION KM SAD #E
ROEREEREE -

REAREREESERR AEEEZRE
M ERIEREFSEEERRFRAR
BEMNRREEHEEETOE - FF/E
ERARASNUBENRAEE A 5B
EEFCHEHETBEES REHAETHE
AEEFEERRRLEZXIHFNERR
ERREERRZNEERYTFRETOE -

RZEBE-—hE+-_A=1+—10 X&EE@EE
REAEBRAAETERFERGATFHERK
Z 5 B8R 705 30,919,000 8 F9 7T & 12,743,000
BT (ZF — /\F : 35,175,000 FF T &
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the gross carrying amount of rental
deposits amounted to MOP387,000 (2018: MOP247,000),
and management of the Group makes periodic individual
assessments on the recoverability of deposits based on
landlords’ credit quality. The management of the Group
believes there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balances of deposits. The directors of the Company
considered that ECL for rental deposits is insignificant at the end
of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2019, the gross carrying amount of deposit
for a construction contract amounted to MOP535,000 (2018:
MOP4,800,000). The deposit had substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivable for the same type of
contract. The Group had therefore estimated the expected loss
rate of the deposit using the same expected loss rate as the
trade receivable. The directors of the Company considered the
ECL for the deposit was insignificant at the end of the reporting
period.

Management of the Group makes individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables, amounts due from a director,
immediate holding company and a related company based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
Management of the Group believes that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balances of other
receivables, amounts due from a director, immediate holding
company and a related company. The directors of the Company
considered that ECL for other receivables, amounts due from a
director, immediate holding company and a related company is
insignificant at the end of the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE—T—NF+-_A=+—HIFE

26. &M T R »

eREMEEBRERER #)

R-_E—NE+_A=+—H8 fHE%s
AR E 42 {E £ 387,000 T (ZZE— N\F :
247,000 7L) MAEEEEE T HIR
BEEMNEEERHZSH B MH#ETT
BRI - AEBEEBRASNEBKER
ReHERTESKEERR - ARFESER
AEEREHNTEREEBSERNREHRIL
TEKX-

R-ZZE—NF+-_A=1+—8 BEAHIK
% M) 42 BR T {E 5 535,00008 F 5t (=T — N\
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HH R E 5 R R B S BUREBUE R ©
I NEBEFAHEERE ZERFERMNTE
HSERAFTZIZENEHREEEX - XA 7
RAEERALENTEREEBEBERES
HIRWREKX °

AEENEEEREELEELE  BEL
BUARABHNAERIFENEEER ¥
HMEWHIE BR—2EE BEERERQ
B R B A B IR R AL R B HE T T B R A o
AEEEEERR  NEENH b REKFIR -
B —BES ERERIBRBEERRR
HNABEESRLEBEBEEAEERAR - KN
RAEERAEMBRFR BR—FES
EERZERARKBEARRENEHRES
BENREHRLAERX -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-F

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, time deposits
and bank balances of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Category
Al

Low risk

YN

Watch list

NAERRZE

Doubtful

ﬁtv

Loss

BB

Description
it

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts
HFEAMEHRBRRIE - B EEEE R
b}

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle in full
BBARTRIMBREN
FE

BREEEE

There have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources
WA IMNERE KRR P15 B KR E R
B #fa BB LA PR A 1

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit impaired

—NEFZA=t—HLFE

26. &M T R »

eREMEEBRERER #)

AEBEERRITEZ
HREERRER  RESHF I AEEK

AR E N EEFRARSRT -

EHIERRIRITHE

=g

as

AEBEAEEERR S RGBT ER

B

Trade receivables/
contract assets

BWES RN ANEE

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired
SHEREEEE
—WELBREERE

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired
FHEBEERR

— @ R R A

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

2HEREEEHR
- Y ELREERE

Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
S HEREREEE
—HREERE

Other financial assets

HinemEE

12m ECL

REABREESRE

12m ECL

REABREESE

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

FHEREESR
—~WEHREERE

Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
2 HEHERER
—HREERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. £t T HE )
Financial risk management objectives and policies EREAMEEBERBEE @)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) = & B R EF 2
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TRHAYEETEPEESETIGNAS
financial assets and contract assets which are subject to ECL CREERGNEENEERR :
assessment:
Gross carrying amount
External credit  Internal credit ~ 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL MtZR=t-HEREE
HBEE hEBEE 128 A BB EEBE 2019 2018
GE R 2HRBEERR “E-NE —E-)\F

MOP'000  MOP'000
TEfAR  TaPr

Financial assets at amortised cost

RBERATIRNERER
Trade receivables 15 NA Low risk Lifetime ECL 12,544 1,049
- not credit-impaired
W E S8R TR { B FHEHREERR
—WEHREERE
Watch List Lifetime ECL 21,548 35,606
- not credit-impaired
IAEREE  2HEREEER
—WELRESRE
Loss Lifetime ECL 216 -
- credit-impaired
e FHEHNEERR
- HREEHE
40,308 36,655
Deposit for a construction contract 15 NA Low risk 12m ECL 535 4,800
REANRS TER (KRR 12EAERREEER
Deposits and other receivables 15  NA Low risk 12m ECL 987 361
ReREMEKTIE TR (& B REARSREEEE
Amounts due from a director 17 NA Low risk 12m ECL 1,016 1,012
Bl —2EFHE TR (& B 1REARREERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 26. £ TH»)
Financial risk management objectives and policies EREAMEEBERBEE @)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) = & B R EF 2
Gross carrying amount
External credit  Internal credit ~ 12m ECL or as at 31 December
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL R+=B=+—-HEKREE
HMEE REEE 12 A R EEBERS 2019 2018
GER. bl PHRBEEER “E-NE BN\
MOP’000  MOP'000
THEMAx  TEMAT
Amount due from immediate 17 NA Low risk 12m ECL 586 586
holding company
W EERBR A R HE TR (R 1REARREESE
Amount due from a related company 17 NA Low risk 12m ECL - 213
Rl —FEBERRHE Qi {E R B 12EARREEER
Pledged bank deposits 18 Al N/A 12m ECL 34,110 29,021
BEARTER TER 12EAEHEERE
Time deposit 18 Al N/A 12m ECL 7,055 7,371
EHER T 1REARSEERE
Bank balances and cash 18 Al N/A 12m ECL 33,552 26,951
RITRARR € TEA 12EAEHEERE
74,717 63,343
Other item
HitER
Contract assets 16 NA Low risk Lifetime ECL 68,561 50,964
- not credit-impaired
aNEE 1ER {E R FHEHREERR

- Y EHREERE
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows a movement in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets under

the simplified approach.

26. &M T R »

LREREEBERBXR#®)

= B 3 b 3R E T4 (2
TRINIFREBCET AERNEKE SR
RRANEEXNBREREEREZD -

RHEE JE W & 5 BR K
Contract assets Trade receivables
2HEE 2HFEE
REBR FEBR 2HREY
(€843 (EEWEH REBR
FEHE) FERE) (LREEHE) =L
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
TRMT TRMAT TRMAT TRMAT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
At 1 January 2018 and RIZE-N\F-A—-AK
31 December 2018 “Z-N\§+ZA=1+-H - - - -
Impairment losses recognised ERRREESE 136 269 216 621
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=+-H 136 269 216 621

Apart from MOP216,000 classified as credit-impaired for the
year ended 31 December 2019, the management applied the
ECL rate from 0.16% to 3.41% in the ECL assessment.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

BREBEE-ZE—NF+=-_BA=1+—H8LHF
B 548 A= ERmMER 216,000 F5 T 2 4
BB E N 1T TE H{E B 18 AT R AT IR AN
NBHEEEEEN TR0.16%E3.41% 2
fE o

RENE £ by

EEERDESRRE  AEBEERNER
EEERSRARNRELREFEYMKE -
UESARENEHREES  WHERE
MERBNTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26. &M T R »
cREMEEHERBE &)

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

I

Liquidity risk (Continueq)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment

RBESER
TRHAVNAEERBHEERGREES
BEENSBTANZHE - IFTESREA

BEME  ZRDBEAREAGEANOR
FERHNERABENRMRASRERH -
HMFTEeMABENIMBEEROED
EFAH - ZRBEMNERAERERE -

terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2years  cash flows amount
g BER RERRE
Ti95% PR1E 122F REBE REE
% MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
% TEMAT TRMAT THRMT THRMT
At 31 December 2019 R=B-NF+-A=+-H
Non-derivative financial FiTELRMEaE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ENE SRR RAMENTE 43,289 - 43,289 43,289
Lease liabilties HEER 1,157 229 1,386 1,326
Amount due to a director ER—REEHE - 367 - 367 367
44813 229 45,042 44,982
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\§+=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial FiTELRMEaE
liabilities
Trade and other payables JEFTE 5 8RR EL th e 5008 16,648 - 16,648 16,648
Lease liabilties MEAfR 5 739 - 739 672
Amount due to a director ER—REEHE = 360 = 360 360
Amounts due to related
companies [ENBEARZA - 164 - 164 164
17,911 - 17,911 17,844
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIAENAFEAE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

THMEEREBRABENAFENREER

BRRASRENTNAREEBREETE -

ARBEFRR  RERAMBRERTIZEH
AN EREERBENREERL
RBERRN D FERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE—-F

27. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

—NEFZA=t—HLFE
27. EXHMERINAEHIR

TRAVAEEELBREEDNEES
BREASLIFRSET - F’i@mﬂ:ﬁé@)ﬁ’]
1 ETE/E;IE%/mEEjZ*XEﬁ%/ﬁ%H#
E’\$$@ﬁ RenBRTPHOBRBMER
FRETRENEE -

Amounts
Amount due to
Lease due to related Accrued
liabilities adirector  companies  issue costs Total
A B
HEER —%EEZ REAH &5t
I M BITHE EH)
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMR TRMR TRMR TRMR TEMT
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\¥—-A—H 802 386 460 - 1,648
Financing cash flow HERERE (1,411) (26) (296) - (1,733)
Non-cash changes FHEH
Interest expenses MERZ 36 - - - 36
New leases HHE 1,245 - - - 1,245
At 31 December 2018 R=F-NF+=A=+-H 672 360 164 - 1,196
Financing cash flow HEHENE (1,624) 7 (164) (3,664) (5,445)
Non-cash changes FREED
Interest expenses MERZ 156 - - - 156
New leases e 2,122 - - - 2,122
Issue costs accrued EEEITRA - - - 4,943 4,943
At 31 December 2019 ZE-NFTZA=T-H 1,326 367 - 1,279 2,972
28. PERFORMANCE BONDS 28. BHRA
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has outstanding N—_E—hE+-_B=+—H K&

performance bonds in respect of construction contracts through
a bank amounting to MOP34,110,000 (2018: MOP29,021,000).
The bonds are secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed

in note 18.

BBERTHRERZSCHNBEREEREY
R K 34,110,000 F L (=& — )\ F :
29,021,000/8F37T) ° Z FRFHMFE18FT
WEHDRFRITERIERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BmERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—Z—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

29. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Right-of-use assets for buildings with a total capital value of
MOP2,122,000 (2018: MOP1,245,000) and the same amount
of lease liabilities were recognised during the year ended 31

29

FREX S

REE-_ZE—hFE+-_A=1+—HBILFEE -
CHEREERER2122,0008F T (= F
— \%F :1,245,0008F970) WEF(EAEE

December 2019. ERAREENHERRE -
30. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. Mt B X B AR
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE-—NEFRZE—NFF+ZRA=+—
2019 and 2018 are as follows: BARARMBARAGFEET
Place and Issued and
date of Place and fully paid  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary incorporation operations  share capital of the Group Principal activities
RE R A 3L BR1T *58
WEARAHE R R B A BEMHY RBERA JE ki 1 TEXRH
2019 2018
BN —T-N\F
Directly held:
EERH:
SEM Investments Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
2 October 2015
SEM Investments Limited EBRUES B 1X7 100% 100% REZK
~E-nE+AZH
Indirectly held:
MRS
SEM Development Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
2 October 2015
SEM Development Limited & B X 100% 100% REZK
“T-RFTAZH
SEM Resources Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100%  Provision of administrative
5 November 2015 support for the Group
SEM Resources Limited B 0 18T 100% 100% ARSERETHE
“Z-n&E+-AhA
Ready System Engineering Limited  Macau Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of electrical and
15 May 2006 mechanical engineering
services
PEZRIRBRAA 2P R 25,0008 100% 100% REBHRERIEZRS
2T ERATRA

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at any
time during both years or outstanding at 31 December 2019 and

2018.

P /8 2 ®) 3 1A P M8 F R (T B R 2 37T
FRAEBELHFIR T —NEFR_T—N
FT A=t AHEARTEINNEBES
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31. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the following significant
events took place:

U)

(i)

The shares of the Company are listed on the Stock
Exchange on 14 February 2020. Pursuant to the Listing,
50,000,000 and 450,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each of the Company were issued by way of public offer
and placing, respectively.

The share premium account of the Company was credited
as a result of the initial listing of shares of the Company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 14 February,
the directors were authorised to capitalise an amount of
HK$14,550,000 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company and applied in paying up in full at
par a total of 1,455,000,000 shares for allotment and issue
to the shareholders of the Company (“Capitalisation Issue”).

The share option scheme of the Company was conditionally
adopted on 22 January 2020 and the principal terms of
which are set out in Appendix V to the Prospectus dated
31 January 2020.

The outbreak of COVID-19 in mainland China and the
subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the mainland
Chinese government as well as the travel restrictions
imposed by other countries in early 2020 have had an
impact on the operations of the Group, as most of the
Group’s operations are located in Macau. The Group had
to suspend its electrical and mechanical contract work for
certain days in January and February 2020 voluntarily in
an effort to contain the spread of the epidemic. The Group
had resumed those contract work in March 2020.

As the situation remains fluid as at the date of these
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue,
the directors of the Company considered that the financial
effects of the COVID-19 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements cannot be reasonably estimated and
will closely monitor the Group’s exposure to the risks and
uncertainties in connection with the coronavirus pneumonia
epidemic.

—NEFZA=t—HLFE

31. FREFHAREBEE

RZZB-NF+A=+—B%& HEEUT

BEXREMH:

) ARABROR-_FT_TF— H+@
BEREXAEm -RELH AR

(i)

F A% {E 0.1 7T 2 50, ooo,oooax&
450,000,000 i% & A% B 2 5l 5 1B A FH
BE RIS EIT o

ARARBRDHEERARNQFROR =
AT BEBIAERGAETM
ER EFEREBAQRRMDEE
B8R ) #E BR & 58 14,550,000 T B £ &
KPUmAREBREEERETE H
1,455,000,000 % B& 15 © s E R D IEE
BRI ([EARMLEErT]) -

ARABNEREFEN T _FTF—
AT -_BREEGRHERAREEER
RERBPA—T_TF—A=1—
Bz BERERMER -

R B A b A B T T it A (COVID-19) K2 AR
B /A b IR B 12 FIT e 0 B9 2 5% 8 e A
&_7_7EWEMI%Mmmﬁﬁ
RAEHASENEFEKRTE
EAAAEB AT D EBLARBM - K
EEER_ZE_ZTF—AK_ABHE
TEHEAHNTEZB  AB LM
BESEE AEEER_ZT_FF =
BmEZEEHNIR-

HREBEEZSHREMBHRRERET
ZRAMEBNATR REARRES
RA » FEFB & (COVID-19) ¥ A & B 47
MBI MBEE BRI BMGR
3 1% 2% 5 B O AN &= B 5 ¥ s B R E
P B ) R B & MBI & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

32. X AR M BN KRR E

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TEMT TR
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KRB 332 =
Investment in a subsidiary R—REMBRRMNIEE 1 1
333 1
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H e U IR 5,591 554
Amount due from immediate holding FEW E B AERR A B FOR
company 586 586
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE S 270 278
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR AR S 2,346 1,855
8,793 8,278
Current liabilities nBaE
Other payables H AT IR 6,663 -
Lease liability HEEE 216 =
Amount due to a subsidiary FET—RE B B A B FRIE 33,038 15,163
39,917 15,163
Net current liabilities nBaEFHE (31,124) (11,890)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHEE (30,791) (11,889)
Non-current liability ERBHEE
Lease liability HEARE 127 =
(30,918) (11,889
Capital and reserves BARGHE
Share capital [N 464 464
Reserves ] (31,382) (12,353)
(30,918) (11,889
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY AND RESERVES (continueq)

Note: Movements in reserves of the Company

2. R a kR R R e

Bar . AATRERD

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BaEE 2BE st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TR T TR T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—H—H 10,263 (6,865) 3,398
Loss and total comprehensive & A ET1E & 2 X 42 %8
expense for the year - (1,878) (1,878)
Repurchase of shares & B [l (10,263) (3,610) (13,873)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=A=+—8 - (12,353) (12,353)
Loss and total comprehensive & A E1E & 2 X 4258
expense for the year - (19,029) (19,029)
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
+=—A=+—H - (31,382) (31,382)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RUE Y S

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and ~ANEEBEMEVBRFEEHE FIBEEUAREE
equity of the Group for the last four financial years, as extracted EBEREDZNBEE HirAARRE L BIRER
from this report and the accountant’s report as contained in the = &ztAIRE) HN T & -

Prospectus, is set out below.

RESULTS £
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+-ALEE
2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-hEF —2-N\%& —2—+tF —E-RF
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

THMR TR TRMT TRMT

Revenue Y zs 203,087 185,229 207,913 139,686

Profit before taxation B& 5 A1 i A1) 27,2817 48,413 44,909 23,022

Taxation P (7,020) (6,927) (6,010) (3,769)

Profit for the year FNEF 20,267 41,486 38,899 19,259
Attrioutable to: MTALEEFERRF

Owners of the Company ARAIEE A 20,267 41,486 38,899 19,259

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H

2019 2018 2017 2016

—E-NE “E-N\% —E—+F “ERF

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

FRMT TRMT FBMT FBMT

Total assets BE®E 207,333 174,099 136,234 121,006

Total liabilities aERE (55,926) (42,959) (32,655) (56,326)

Total equity BEREE 151,407 131,140 108,579 64,680
Attributable to: IATALEREREE

Owners of the Company ARABAA 151,407 131,140 108,579 64,680
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